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Nassaun County

; LA ' Office of Purchasing
A - 3=/ staft summary A-37-2016
Subject: Journal Technologies Inc. Date:
(RQDA16000098) September 20, 2016
Department: Vendor Name:
Office of Purchasing Journal Technologies Inc.
Department Head Name: Contract Number
Eric Naughton A-37-2016
Department Head Sighatur Contract Manager Name
/; s 2 ) // / Timothy Funaro
WP, At
/ e 7 /
Proposed Legislative Action Internal Approvals
To Date ! Approval | Info Other Date & [nit, Approval Date & Init. | Approval
Assgn Comm Dept. Head Counsel to C.E.
Rules Comm Budget in County Atty.
L Full Leg Deputy CE.  Ve/ni fi4 @;? County Exec.
Narrative

Pyrpose: To authorize and award a purchase order for Annual Support and Maintenance Renewal for the Justware Case
Management and Document Management System used by the Nassau County District Attorney's Offfcer

Discussion: This request is for a sole source purchase. Journal Technologies Inc. is the creator and copyright owner ef
lustwate software and.as sich is the sole provider of the support. The Maintenance agreement period shall be frem 12-1-
2016 to 11-30-2017.

Impact on Funding; A purchase order in the amount One Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Seven
Dollars ($148,987.00) from General Funds.

Recommendation: Office of Purchasing recommends awarding a purchase order toJournal T8 chfisTogies Inc. as the sole
source provider for the required software maintenance. ST o
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

 INTER — DEPARTMENTAL MEMO

.
LU

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURR A-37-2016

FROM: ERIC NAUGHTON, DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE-FINANCE
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 23, 2016

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION-NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY;’S OFFICE -

et
1

THIS RESOLUTION 1 RECOMMENDED BY THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF FURCHASING TO
AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE
HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY-SEVEN DOLLARS
(5148,987.00) ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO
JOURNAT TECHNOLQGIES INC. TO PROVIDE JUSTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT
FOR NASSAU COUNTY DISTRIC_T ATTORNEY'S OFFICE.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMI\/HTTEE
FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA

H'

“BRIC NAUGHTON -
Y DEPUTY COUNY EXECUTIVE-FINANCE

MSIbl’ F
ENCL: (1) STAFF SUMMARY
(2) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
(3) RESOLUTION ~ °

(4) SOLE SOURCE DOCUMENTS

(5) QUOTATION =~ .

(6) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
(7) POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION FORM




RULES RESOLUTION 2016

b
L

A EESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF NASSAU COUNTY OFFICE OF
PURCHASING TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF

NAS SAU ACTING ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DISCTICT ATTORNEY’S

oy

OFFICE AND JOURNAL TECHNOLOGIES INC.

#,

ARR Rea® TR % A

£

WHEREAS, the Disdctor is representing to the. Rules. Committee that the firm, JQURNAL.

TECHNOLOGIES INC. is a sole source provider and meets all specilications for the product described in
said contract 2-18 determined by the Director of the Office of Purchasing.

S

RESOLVED; that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the Director,

Office of Purchasing to aWér’d and execute said Purchase Order with JOURNAL TECHNOLOGIES INC.

o
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MADELINE-SINGAS

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY

NASSAU COUNTY
262 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
MINEQLA, NEW YORK 11501
TELEPHONE (516) 571-3800

October 21st, 2.016

- To whom it may concern:

Journak Technologies. is.the vendor wha designed.and.installed their proprietary
JustWare Prosecutor Case Ma.nagement system, Design and implementation began in 2012
and the system went live in December 2014. Journal Technologies is the only vendor
capable of prov1d1ng maintenance, support, and upgrades to the Database, Web Server,
Document Server, and Report Management server, They are proprietary owners of that
software, and no other vendor has rights to access to the code of those modules necessary
to provide upgrades. They are also the only vendor with unique knowledge of
customization and configuration of those modules for our office.

Very truly yours,

Gordon F, TraboW
Director of Technology Services




OFFICE OF PURCHASING . FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 40513-04116-006

COUNTY OF NASSAU
-+ POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
pussuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginming April 1, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclosurs, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginiing two
yoars pn'br to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the

campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
commitees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices; the County
Executive, the Couniy Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legxslator?
If yes, to What campa,lgn committes?

/’IZ)

2, VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or
Vendor authotized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts,

The undersigned affirrs and so sweats that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, t¢ his/her know! edge, true end accurate,

The undersm:led fo ther certiﬁes and affirtng that the contribution(s) to the campaign commitices
identified above were made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a sovernmental

benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration,

: S Vendor: JO"’”‘“ Teckaologies
Daeds 42676 signed: \ Q@E‘é
Prh'ltName: _S o~ Pfﬁ k
Title: O™

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B, DESTINATION AND 1 JDE DELIVERY WITHIN DDORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIEIED.
Loo

BIDDER SIGN HERE

U BIDDER TITLE
29
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OFFICE OF PURCHASING: FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 40513-04116-006

Page1of4 e
‘ COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of lobbylst(s}/lobbymg organization: The term “lobbyist” means any and every petson or

~ organization retained, employed or des:tgnated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassay
County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including bui not
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission; or to otherwise engage in
lobbying activities as the term is defined herein. Such mattets include, but are not limited 1o, requests for
proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term
“lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employes, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau,
or State of New York when discharging his ot her official duties.

None

2. List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g,, Nassau County, New
Yorlk State);

None

3. Name, address a:ﬁd telephone number of clent(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained,
cmployed or designated: ‘
None

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.O.B. DESTI%TION!%}SD S%CLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS QTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
BIDDER SIGN HERE 0T ‘ . coo

\J BIDDER TITLE
15




OFFICE OF PURCH@E&_NG - o FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK A0513-04116-006

Page 2 of 4

4, ,[:)escribe-'l-dﬁby.ing- écti\dty conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for
each activity listéd. See page 4 for a complete description of lobbying activities.

. None

5. The name of persons; organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

None

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.8. DESTIh\ATION{I)ND&NCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,

BIDDER STEN HERE , - COQO
~J BIDDER, TITLE

16




OFFICE OF PURCHAS:NG : FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK 40513-04116-006

Page 3 of 4

VERIFICATiON: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the
foregoing statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Dated: 'Q"Bfé"/ b - Signed: X&L

Print Naine; \JIon Peelz

Title! COO

ALL BIBS MUST BE F.0.B. DESTINA

CUWDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,.

RIDDER SIGN HERE COO

(J BDER o TETLE
17




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSALF STATE OF NEW YORK 40513-04116-006

Page 4 of 4:

The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau-County
Legislatate, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove
any local legislation orresolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County
Legislature; any detetmination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with
respect to the procurement of poods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract
specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a coniract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or
agreement involving the disbursement of pubfic monies; any determination made by the County Executive,
County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, fis agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or
committees, including but not liraited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Comrlﬁttee, the Plaiming
Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County
regulation, o any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads ot committees with respect to requests for
proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official ot an officer or employee of the connty with respect to the terms of the acquisition or
disposition by the county of any inferest in reel property, with respect to a license ot permit for the use of real
property of or by the county; or with respect to a franchise, concession or revoeable consent; the proposal,
adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of any rule Raving the force and effect of Taw; the decision fo
hold, timing ot cutcome of any rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of &
board or commission;

any determination fegarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;
m&mmwmaalwm&ﬁoamﬁm substence.of.a.Covaty Bxacutive Ordet, o any determinationmade by-an.
elected county official or-an officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or fedelal
legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any
amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced
and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

LL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B, DES TIONAND/ANCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
L4
COO

N BIDDER TITLE
18

BIDDER SIGN HERE
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OFFICE OF puncmsm_ =
' COUNTY OF ﬁi&SSAU ST/

PRINGI P-A;,gyESTI (

Ail quesﬂcms on thase Ju@ﬂilmnr}airas nust be-answered by all officers and any Indhitiuals who hold a fen

percent {10%) or greatbr ownership Interest in the proposer: Answers typewritian or printed In Ink. If you need
mare spacs 1o answer pny quesiion, make as many phofocoples of the appmpﬂate paga(s} B8 necessary and
atfach fhem tothe quaﬂonnalre

FORMBAL BEALED BID PROPOSAL
'iE OF NEW YORK 4051304 115-006

JESTIONK AEA ' émi. WILL BE BEJECTED AS
MON«RESPONS»IVE A »m T WILL NO’T‘ BE comsmmza FOR FOUARD

1, Principal Name Cérald Ti. Salzmn, P;re_s_a___dem;
Date of birth 1 | ; 16 / 1939 -
Home addmgg 1405’0 Ea.s—t_ridge Drive

tyfsta{e[z Wiutti-er-, CA 90802
Business addrgsg? Bix5 E ist Street
Citystate/zip Lbs Angeles;,' CA 90012
Telephona 2}34229 5434

Chiter present adc&ﬁ*&ss@aa)
Cltyfs’caiefz{p
Telephona
Ust of other addr@aaes and felephone. numbam attamad

i

2. Positions hald in :yuiamitﬁng busihess and starting date of each (check sl app!ncabla)
President /] | /1.999Treasurer __ J [ 1999

Chairman uf Boa fooot . Shareholder [ {

Chlef Exec Offi r /... 1L999Secretary ,f (1999
Chisf Finanslal O :_;cer L) QPartner / I _
Vics Presidentt _ {1 4 { I :-,f :

-(Dther} For thes! gubs:Ld:Lary, Jouinal Technologies, from 1999 as 1ndicated above and for
‘the parent “Dally Journal Corpcration from 1586,

3. Do youhave an Equaty Inferest in the business subrmitting: the ques’donnalre'? :
YES_ . RO X} i Yes, pmv[de detalls, Journad.: Tedhnologza,as iz a whully—owned subsidiary
. of Daily Jburnal Corporation, a public company, in whivh I own 2.3%.
4. Are there any outhtanding loans, guarantees.or any other form of security or lease or any other type of
contribution -n*’a‘ade En whole or In part between yolrand the busma% submitting the questionnalre?
YES ___ NO_ 4 If Yas, provide details, ,

5. Within ffie past 3 paars, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-for-profit
organtzation othef than the one submitfing the questionrialre? YES X NO. ;i Yes, provide dedalls.
Daily Journaj’ Corporaticn, parent of Journal TechnologiesT
8. Has any- govarnmpntai entity awarded any tonfracts to a buginess or organlzaﬂen llsted tn Sectlon 5 In
the past 8 years wh 13 you were a princlpal owneror officer? YES NO _X _ if Yes, provide detalls.,

Presn_dent o
- . ROE

BIDDER &GN Here JOYE




OFFICE OF PURCHASING

FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL

COURTY OF NASSAU 'sm‘:g-or NEW YORI 40513-04116-006

NQTE: An -aifﬂiimatlve aj

oras-a result-of any azﬁf

Provids a datalled respc
appropriate-pege and &

7. In the past (8} years
Section '6"- in 'whls_h' ¥4

i
;%‘wer I reguired below whather the sanction-arose autematically, by operation of law,
n taken by a government agency, '

nse 14 all questions checked "YES", If you heed mors spacs, photosopy the
ach it to the questionnaire. '

;hava you andfor any afflliated businessas or riot-for-proflt.organizations fistedIn
>u ‘have been a princlpal owner or offlosr: '

a. Been ‘dai}aerrmle'@y a?,{y government agency from sntering Info contracts with that agency?

YES:

NO

b. Bosn dedlard
canicelisd for

¢. Béen deried

it Yes; provide detalls for saph-such instancs,

d in dafault andior termingted for cause on ahy confract, and/or had any contracts
causs? YES NO X If Yes, provide dslalls for éaoh such Instance.

the award of a contract andis;r%'a_ﬁp;ﬁunﬂty to bid on & contract, Including, but not

limltect to; feilure to maet pre-qualification standards? YES . NO_X i Yes, provide dotells

fg)r each such

d. Basn suspar

'.gnstance..

action pendin
on eontrect?

:lla;i by any government agency fram enfering into-any contract with It; andlor Is any
9 that could formally debar or otharwise affect such business's abliity to bid or propose
YES . NO X W Yes; provide-detslis foreach suchinstance: -

8. Have any of the bus] '%esses or organizetions listed In response ‘to'{:z,uesﬁo_n 5 filad & bankruptey petitlon

andior bean the subje

partion of the lagt 7

proceadings, whene)

response 1o all quest
altachif fo the questh

a) Is there any f

ot of Involuhtary bankruptey pracesdings durlng the past 7 years, andlor far any

yast pariod, besh ih a state of bankruptey as & tesult of bankrupley procsedings
Toltlated morelann-7ly

yoRrR Rgnant/oneany. sush businessnowthe-subject ol any-pending bankraptey -
vor inftlated? If "Yes', provide details for sach such instance. {Provide a delalied

ons checked "YES". if you nesd mare spae, Photocopy the appropriate page and
onnalre.) . ' :

':In'hy charge pending agalnst you? YES RO _X ¥ Yes, provide detalls for

each such chirge.

b) s fhraré_ BNy
dotalls for ea

iisdernasnor charge pending against you? YES _NO_X  KYes, provide
I;lsuc;h charge.

o) 18 fHere any gdministrative charge pending ageinet you? YES NO_X i Yas, provide

detalls for ea

i such charge.

d) Inthe past 10 ff,zears. have you been vonvictsd, afterrial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other

crime, an eleny

ent of which relates to fruthfulness or the underlying facts of which related 1o the

corduct of bu %Ir;ess? YE8 ___ NO_X I Yes, provide details for gach such convicfion,

@) Inthe past5 gr%ars. have you been convicted, after triad ot by pleq, of a m:isdem:éanor?
YES__ NOLL X If Yes, provide details for sach such cenvietion. -

I

f) Inthe 'p.ragt 5 Jears, hax_}e_you been foundin violation p}l‘i_anyﬁe_zﬂhﬂﬁ?'sfmti\fe ar stafutpry charges?

YES . N®. X I Yes, provide detalls for sach such securrence.

ALL BIDS MUST BE£.Q.B,

, STINATION ANINOLY CTHERIE SRRCIFIED,
EBYDBER SIGN HERE Jourial Technologies President
-1 BIDDER * _ YTrLE
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OFFICE OF PURCHASING| | FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK AU513-04116-006
. N A ¢
9. - In addlifion 1o the infprmation provided In response to the previous questions, In the past 5 years, have you
bean the sublect of B oriminal Investigation and/ora civil enfdrust investigation by any federal, siats or
slocal prosecufing orjinvestigative agensy and/or the subject of an Investigetion whers such lnvestigation
wag related to activiles petformed at, for, orori behalf of the submiltting business entity andfor an affiliated
+businese listed In rapponse to Question 5% YES ___ NO X 1 Yas, provido detalls for sach such
-investigation. ‘ ; -
10.1n addition to the Infymaticn provided, in the past 5 years hag any business or arganization listed in
“Tesponsyto Questldy 5, baen the subject of a eriming) Investigation andfor & chvil ‘antirust investigation
“andfor-any othat typs o Investigation by any goverament agency, including bit not Hmited fo federal, state,
-and tooal regulatoryiagenciés while you wers a prinalpsl owner or offlcer? YES s NO X ¥ Yes;
provide detalls foregoh such nvestigafion, . : T

11;1n the past 5 yesrs, kayve you or fhis by siness, or any other affilisted businese listéd responsets
Ruestion 5 had anygariction nivosed as a résull-of judldal oradminlstraiive proceedings with respact to

‘any professional lisanse hald? YES___ NO X if Yé:s_;‘pr@:;v]ﬁ@ detalls Toreaoty suoh nstanca,

12..For the béét 5 tax ;ye;af_rs, have you "'falim_l fo#le any required fax returns of falled o pay any applicable

federal, state or Icg taxes or other assessad aharges, Including but not liited to waitet and sewer
‘charges? YES I NO X I Yés, provide details for sach such year:

151 Technologies
BIDDER

BIDDER STEN HERE JOLY

TIE

R e




' OFFICEOF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU STATE OF NEW YORK , | 40513-04116-006

|

B ) TR ¥
CERTIFICATION - |1 | ) |
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENBERING THE SUBMITTI NG.BUSINESS ENTITY NGT
RESPONSIBLE WITHIRESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY
SUBJECT THE PERS ON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.
I, Gerald L. Salzman = .
contained in the Torege
full and complete ansy _ _
hotifythe County In'writhg of any change in tirgumstances ooouring after the submission of thiz qusstisnhaire
and befors the exsculign of the contract; and that all lnformation stpplled by me Is irue tothe best of my
knowledge; fnformation and balief, J understand that the Cotnty will rély o the information supplied In fhis

guestionnaire as .ad_ciltlwpa! inducenment & snterinto a contract with the submitting business entity.

21 ng duly sworn, state that I have read and understand all the ltems
ing pages.of this questionnalre and the following pages of altachments; that | supplied
18 1o each ftem thareln 1o the hest of my knowledge, Informalion and belief: fhat T wii

Swaorn to before me tbts;?ﬁ%ay of (ehbar 202 201 b

. BRENDA ). EUNG..
- COMM, #2050389
-, Notary Public - California
Los Anggies__oouf_g “,
Comm. Expires Nov, 28, 20

=L LOUN el

N A

Journal Technioldgies, Inc.
Name of subraltting business

Gerald L. Salznan
Sanatire R

President

Tifle _
10 , 26 ; 20[s

Date

ALL BEDS PUST BE 1L0.B: DESTINATION LUDE DELIVERY WITHIN
SIODER S1GN HERE SOURnAl Technologies Y\ |

o P.:r‘gegicigaﬁt-




QFFECE OF PURGHASINC{ FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAY STATE OF NEW YORK 40513-04116-006

PRINCIPAL QUESleN NAIRE FORM

All questons on these questlonna:res must be answered by all officars and any individuals who hold & ten
percent (10%) or greater ownership interest In the proposer, Answers typewritten or printed In ink. If you nesd
more space to answer. any-quastion, make as many photccopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and
attach them fo tha questlonnaire

COMPLETE THIS QUESTION NAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY, FAILURE TO SUBMIT A
COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS
NON«RESPONS[VE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1, Pnnclpal Nama  JonPeek
Date of birth 04 ~ /16 /1968
Home address

thy/state/z;p

Business addréss 843 9100 W
Cltyfstatelzlp Logan, UT 84321
Telephone (‘%35}713 -2100

Other present address(es)
Cityfstatafzip
Telephone ______ .
List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Paositions held irj_s.ubmitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President [ { Treasurer I/

Chalrmanof Board -~/ / Sharehclder / /
Chief Exec. Officer ___ [/ Secretary /|

Chlef Financiaj Officer / {__ Partner / /

Vice President _ B / / / !
(Other) COO . 10/01/2014 to Present

3., Doyou have a%eqmty interest in the business submitting the questionnalre?
YES If Yes, provide detalls.

‘4. Are there any oufstanding l-oans, guaranteas or any other form of securlty or lease or any other type of
contribution m%cée in whole or in part hetween you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES If Yas, provide details.

5, Within the pas‘r 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-for-profit

organization other than the cne submlitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO _X; If Yes, provide details.

8. Hasany goverhnﬁ_én*ﬁal entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed In Section 5 in
the past 3 years While you were a principal owner or officer? YES __ NO _ X If Yas, provide detalls,

[

NCEUDE DELIVERY WITHIN ROORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,

- ) CoO
~J T BIDPER TITLE
25

BIDDER SIGN HERE




OFFICE OF PURCHASING FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
COUNTY OF NASSAU'S_TATE OF NEW YORK 40513-04116-008

NOTE An affirmative answar is requlred below whether the ‘sanction arose au’romatically, by operation of faw,

or as a result of any acticn taken by a government agency.
Provide a detailed responsa to all questions checked "YES". If you need mors space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach if to the questionnalre,

7. In the past (5)» yearsr have you and/or any afflliated businesses or hot-for-profit organizations listed in
Sec’uon 51in whsch you have been a principal owner or offlcer:

a

- action panding that could formally debar or cthetwise affect such business’s ability to bid or propose

Been debarred by any government agency from entering info confracts with that agency?
YES - NO X If Yes, prowde details for each such instance.

Bean decl,e_{red in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts
cancelled for cause? YES NO X I Yes, provide dstalls for each such instance.

Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, fncluding, but rot

limited to, failure to meet pre-gualification standards? YES ___ NO _X _  If Yes, provide details -

for each suoh instance.
Bear suspended by any governmenﬁ agency from entering 1nto any contract with it; andfor is any

on contract? YES NO X If Yes, provide detalls for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 flled a bankruptey petition
and/or besn the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, andfor for any
pattion.of the. last.7 vear patiod,.baan In.a.stata.of hankruptey as.a result.of banlauptcy. procesdings.
initiated more than 7 years ago andfor is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptey
proceedings, whenever Inftlated? If “Yag’, provids details for each such instance. {Provide a detalled
response fo all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it fo the qusstionnaire.)

a)
b)
9

d)

s there ahyhfélo,hy_charge pending against you? YES __ NQ_*  If Yes, provide details for
each such charge.

Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO_* I Yes, provide
detalls for sach such charge.

ls there any_'admin'istrative charge pending against you? YES ____ NO *  If Yes, provids

details for-each such chargs.

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, aftertrial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other
crime, an element of which relates fo fruthfulness ot the underlying facts of which related to the
conduct of huslness? YES __ NO _* I Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

In the past b years, have you besn convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES - NO X [ Yes, provide details Tor each such conviction.

In the past b years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?

" YES o NO_X  If Yes, provids details for each such occurrence.

ALE BIDS MUST BE F.Q.B, DESTINA EGN AN%%NC %:DELT.VER! WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
BIDDER SIGN HERE . COoO

“J BIDDER TITLE
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9.

10.

11,

12,

In addltion fo the information provided in response to the previous guestions, In the past 5 years, have you
been the subject of a ctiminal Investigation and/or a civil anfi-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or Investigative agency and/or the sublect of an Investigation where such Investigation
was related to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitfing business entity andfor an affiliated
business listed in response to Question 57 YES ____ NO_X_ |f Yes, provide details for each such
investigation,

In addition to the information provided, in the past & years has any business or organization listed in
rasponse to Quastion 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a clvil anti-trust Investigation
and/or any other type of investigation by any govermment agenacy, including but not limited to federal, stais,

and local regulatory agencies while you were a principal owner or officer? YES NO_X IfYes;

provide details for each such investigation.

In the past Sj.yéar-s have you or this business, or any other afflllated business listed In response io
Question 5 had any sanction Imposed &s a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect fo
any professional license held? YES ____ NO & X i Yes; provide detalis for each such Instance,

Far the past: 5 tax- years; have you falled to flle any required tax returns or falled to pay any applicable
federal, state orlocal taxes or other assessed charges, Including but hot limlted to water and sewer
charges? YES . NO X If Yes, provide dstails for each such year.




QFFICE OF PURGHASING _ FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
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CERTIFICATION . -

AMATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NCT
RESPONSIBLE W|TH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

|, _ JonPeek , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the ftems
contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that | supplied
full and complete answers to each item therein fo the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that | wili
notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this quastionnatre
and before the exacution of the contract; and that all information supplled by me s true to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
questionnalre as additional inducement to enter into & contract with the submitting business antity.

st T

6y of Suplemior 20)

Sworn tg before me thisQIJ

A

/

Notary Public -~

A_-ﬂu rie t Tech nm’b‘_{}fj

. " ONNA GREENE
Name of submitting buslness % NO‘EHY puauc’: 3@7@ ggg;;;u
. MMISSION NO.

Jon Peek , (,%JMM. EXP, 12/16/2018
Print nam —
Signaturk_)

COO..
Title ,
g 4 J6 )L

Date "

ALL BIDS MUST BE 50,8, DESTINAT%N Aﬁg%wms DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
BIDDER STGN HERE COO

U BIDDER TITLE
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Business History Form -

The contract shall be aWérded to the responslble proposer who, at the discretioh of the County, taking Into
consideration the reliabillty of the propassr and the capaclty of the proposer to perform the services required by
the County, offers the best valus to the Gounty and who will best promote the public interest,

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire, The
guestionnaire shall-be filled out by the owner of a sole propristorship of by an authorized representative of the
firm, corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: AH questlons require a response, aven If response iIs "nons” or “not-applicable.” No bianks.

(USE ADDITIDNAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 09/20f2016 ‘
1) Proposer 8 Legal Name: Tournal Technologies, Inc,
2) Address of P}ace of Business: 843 5. 100 W Logan, UT 84321

List all other busmess addresses used within last five years:

3) Mailing Address (if different};
Phone..’ (435)713-2100

Doas the husiness own or rent its facilfies?  Rent

4) Dun and Bradstreet number:_ 967459983

5y Rederal LD, Number; ~~ 87-0626854

6} The proposer is a {check one); Sole Proprletorship Partnership c Corporation ___ Other
{Describe)

73 Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other businass?
Yos . No X If Yes, please provide details:

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes ___ No X If Yes, please provide details:

9) Does this busineg have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or centrolled by, any ciher

business? Yes if Yes, provide details.__J 1 Technol I 1009
by the Daﬂy ]ou”—l Cor BoTation, P ails.__Journal Technologies Inc. is % owned

COO :
~ BIDDER TITLE
19

BIDDER SIGN HERE
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10)Has the propose'r ever had a bond or surety cancelied or forfeited, or a cantract with Nassau County or any
other government entlty terminated? Yes _ No____ If Yes, state the name of bonding egency, (if a
bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such cancallation of forfeit re"'dr‘deiai!s_ regarding the
tafﬁ]ina on (if 2 G%ﬂif‘ oty NY - Nagsau County TPVA and Journa 'I’echno1og1es nc., previously
CwW Lawn L

echnologies; e, Tmtwaliy agreed—tvcease dotng busimess togetirer:

11) Has the proposéf, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yés __NoX IfYes, state
date, court jurisdiction, amount of iiabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business andfor any of Its owners and/for officers and/or any affiiated
businéss, been the subject of a criminal Investigation andfor a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal,
state or local prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or
officer of any afflliated business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/for a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such invastigation
was related o activities performed at, for, or on behalf of an affillated business.

Yes ' No X_ if Yes, provide detalls for each such investigation.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of Its owners and/or officers and/or any affliated busihess
been the-subjeet of an vestigetion by any government agency, ineluding but not fimited to federat; stater
and local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or offlcer of an affillated
business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but hot limited to
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that indlvidual's position at or
relationship to an afflliated buslness. Yes ____ No ___}_(__ . IfYes, provide details for each such
nvestlgation,

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employes of this business had, elther
befare or during such person's empioyment, or since such employment if the charges pertained tc events
that allsgedly occurred during the time of amployment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to
the conduct of that business:

a) Anyféiony charge pending? Yes _ No _X_ if Yes, provide detalls for each such
chards. _ " -

b} An} misdemeanor charge pending? Yes __ No X  If Yes, provide details for sach such
charge._

¢) Inthe past 10 yeérs,, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any falony and/or any other
crime, an slement of which relates to truthfuiness or the underlying facis of which related to the
conduct of businass’? Yes . No_X If Yes, provide details for each such conviction

d) In ’the_' ‘p_ast & years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?

Yes . NoX - |If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.
ALL BIDS MUST BE F,0.B, DESTINAﬁOiﬂ A%E INGIAIDE DELIVERY WITHIN DODRS UNIESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BYDDER SIGN HERE — } CQOo
\_) BIDDER TITLE
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@) Inthe past b years, been found in violation of any administrative, statatory, or regulatory
provnslons‘? Yes No X "f Yes, provide details for each stich occurrence.

15} In the past (5) years, has this business or any of ifs owners or officers, or any other affillated business had
any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional
licenss held? Yezs = No % If Yes, provide detalls for each such instance.

16} For the pas’c (5) tax years, has this business faliad to file any required tax retumns or failed to pay any
applicable fedsral, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, Including but not limited to water and
sewer charges? Yes No X If Yes, provide defalls for sach such year. Provide a detailed
response fo all questions checked YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it 1o the questionnaire.

Provide a detailed responsa o all questions checked "YES". If you nesed more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and a’ttach it fo the questionnaire,

17) Conflict of Interest: : '
a) Please disclose any conflicts of intarest as outlined helow, NOTE If no conflicts exist,
please expressly state “No conflict exists.”
- (I} Any material financia! relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a
. conflict of inferest ar the appearance of a conflict of interest in actlng on behalf of Nagsau
County. . No conflict exists

ity Any famn[y retationship that any employoee of your firm has with any County public servant
- that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a confiiet of interest in acting cn.
behalf of Nassau County.
: No_conflict exists

(i) Any other matter thai your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance
. ofa GOhﬂ!G'E of Interest in acting or behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

b) Please describe any prosedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a

conflict of interest would not exist for vour firm In the future. )
_ Journal Technologies, Tnc. has a standard ethics policy in place that requires

employees to disclose and monitor potential conflicts of interest.

A. Include a resume or detaileci description of the Proposers professional gualifications, demonstrating
extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these
experiences, must be identified.

Should the proposer be other than an ind]vidua[ the Proposal MUST include:
) Dateof formafion, 01/29/1999

ALL BIDS MUST EE F.0.B. bESTINAT&N AN% %Sf%?s DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECYFIED.
RIDDER SIGN HERE | CQO

\/ BIDDER TITLE
21
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iy Name, é'ddressea,.,_an.cl,.pqs_%’r.iQn.:.Qf.-al!.-.;?@.rzsqnsﬁhaving a flnancial inferest in the company, including
~ shareholders, members, general or limited partner;

FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL
40513-041316-006

See attachment

iil} Name; address and position of al! officers and directors of the company; See attachment

lv)  State of incbrporation {If applicable);

Utah

v} The number of employaes in the firm; 170

vi)  Annual revenus of firm:
vii)  Summary of relevant accomplishments

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and pe

B. [ndicate nijm}_)ef of yearsIn business. 17

See attached 10 K

Sell, implement, and support software for the
g’us,\Eice community.
mits,

C. Provide an& other Information which would be appropilate and helpful In dstermining the Praposer's

capacity and reliabliity to perform these services.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewsr than three references for whom the Proposer has provided
similar services or who are qualified {o evaluate the Proposer’s capability to perform this work.

Nassau County District Attorney's

Company ___

Contact Potson_-. Gordon Trabold
Addf.“egs o 262 OldCounty‘ RD;
City/Stafe  Minecla, NY
Telephone _ (516)571-3800

Fax #

E-Mail Address

gordon.trabold@nassauda.org

COO0

ALL BIDS MUST BE F.0.B. DESTINAT% mg{%mc;.f%%wmv WYTHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECTEIED,
BIDDER SIGN HERE ¥

o~
\_/ BIDDER
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- Spokane Municipal Court, Prosecutors

Company __ ‘.

Gontact Person Howard Delaney
Address . 909 W.Mallon
City/State . Spokane WA

Telophono ___ (309)835-5988

Fax # L

E-Mail Addréés _' hdelaney@spokanecity.org

Comjgj:)any -- ) lSolano County District Attorney
Contact Perééﬁ - Krishna Abrams

Address +675 Texas Street Suite 4500

Citwétate .:'.'Fait}?ield QA

Te!eéhone : (-707)’;784-680()

Fax # o

solanoda@solanocounty.com

E-Mall Address___

BIDDER SIGN HERE
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CERTIFI CATION

AMATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNEGTION WITH
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES,

I, Jon Peek. , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the ftams
contalned in the foregeing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that | suoplisd
full and complete answers o each item thereln to the best of my knowledgs, information and belief; that | will
notify the Gounty In writing of any changs In circumstances ocourring after the submission of thls questlonnaire
and before the execution of the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my
knowledge, information and bellef. | understand that the County will rely on the Information supplied in this
questionnalre as additlonal inducement to ehter into a contract with the submiiting business entity,

Swom to before-‘fﬁ'__iﬁls Qe dey)of S&;@W{ 20ily

Notary Public O

Name of.submitting business; Journal Technologies, Inc,

- Jon Peelk E
By L AN
Pr tna{yﬁe
. Sy
Slgrature R
. -COO
, Title
A4, 96, /[4
Date
Lt BIDS MUST BE F.0,B. DESTINATION ANDr Gt LIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIDDER SIGN HERE 4 CQO

U BIDDER ™~ TITLE
24
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Page | of 4

4.

COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S AND VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

Name of the Entity: Journal Technologies,

Addregs Inc, 843 S 100 W

City, Stafe and Zip Code: Logan, UT 84321

Entity’s Veiidor Identification Number: 87-0626854

Type of Business: x _ Public Cor Partnership Joint Venture

_ Ltd. Liability Co Closety Held Corp Other (specify)

List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or

coraparable body, all partners and limited partners, ail corporate efficers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all

. members and officers of limited Hability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

See attachment.

5.

List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm, If the shareholder is not

an individual, lst the individual shareholdres/pariners/membets, Ifa Publicly held Corporation include a copy
of the 10K in lien of completing this section.

Journal Technologies, Inc. is 100% owned by the Deily Journal Corporation.

ikt BIDS MUST BE F.Q,B. DESTINATION AND ANCLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
BIDDER SIGH HERE COO

\ BIDDER - TITLE
11




OFFICE OF PURCHASING - - FORMAL SEALED BID PROPOSAL

COUNTY OF MASSALI STATE OF NEW YORK 40513~04116-006
Page 2 of 4
6. List all affiliated and related companies and thefr relationship to the firm entered on line 1, above (if

none, enter “None”), Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that mey take
part in the performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary
companies not previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract,

None

7. List all lobbyists whose.services. wera utilized at any. stage in this matier. (ie., pre-bid, bid, post-bid,
ete.). The term “lobbyist” means any and every person ot organization retained, employed or designated by any
client to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boatds, commissions, department
heads, legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Commities
and Planning Comuission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or
improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements, or fo otherwise engage in lobbying as
the term is defined herein, Tho term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, ditector, trustee, employee,
counsel o agent of the County of Nassay, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties,

(a)  Nams, title, business address and telephone mumber of lobbyist(s):

None .

BIDDER SIGN HERE

S  BIPDER TR
12
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Page3 of 4

()  Desctibe lobbying activity of each lobbyist, See page 4 of 4 for a complete deseription of
lobbying activities., ~

- None

(e) ﬁiht whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County,
New York State}:

None .-

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a prineipal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor
authotized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigoed afﬁ;ﬁw and so swears that he/she hias read and understood the foregoing statements and they
are, to histher knowledge, true and aceurate.

' Dated: éf' @.‘6““/6' . Signed: ]\N\Qéé

Print Name: cek T~
“Tifle: COO
ALL BID BE F.0.B. DES TION AND 1’ CLUDE DELIVERY WITHIN BOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.
BIPDER SIGN HERE . ) CCO
U BIDDER TITLE
13
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Page 4 of 4:

The term lobbying shall mean any attemapt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local
legislation or resolution; eny determination by the County Executive to suppott, oppose, approve or disapprove
any local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been inttoduced in the County
Legislature; any determination by an elected County official or an officer or empleyee of the County with
respect to the procurement of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract
specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or
agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the County Exeoutive,
County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or
cominittess, incliding but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning
Comimigsion, with respeet to the zoning, use, development or improvement of eal property subject to Courity
regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committecs with respect to requests for
proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition ot
disposition by the county of any intersst in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real
property of of by the county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal,
adoption, amendment orrgjection by anr ageney of any rule having the foree and effect of 1aw; the decision to
hold, iming or outcome of any rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a
board or commission;

any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislatiire oversight hearing;

the.issuance, repeal, modification or substance.of 8. County. Executive Qrdet;, o any detesminationmade by an..
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to suppott or oppose any state or federal
legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any
amendment of such legislation, iule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced
and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed,

ALY BYDS MUST BE F.0.8. DESTINAT%N AND INCLVIDE DELIVERY WITHIN DOORS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED,
BIDDER SIGN HERE L\ COO

U BIDDER - TITLE
14




~ Journal Technologies, Inc. Officers

Gerald L. Salzman — President, Secretary, and Vice Chairman
915 E. 1% Street Los Angeles, CA 90012

213-229-5300

Jon Peek - Qh_i_ef Orlaeraition Officer
1843 5100 W Logan, UT 84321

435-713-2100

Kyle Kennington-Assistant Secretary
843 § 100 W Logar, UT 84321

' 43%«-»?’-}3«21@&
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16-K 1 djca20150927_10k.htm FORM 10K

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washmgton, D C 20549

FORM IO-K
(MARK ONE}*

K ANNUALREPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITINS EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT ?URSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File No, 0-14665
DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

(Exactname of registrant as specified in its charter)

South Carolina 954133299

{State or other, Jjurisdictien of (IRS Employer
{ncorporation orerganization) Identification No,)
915 East First Strest
Los Angeles, Californiz : 90012
(Address of prineipal executive offices) - (Zip Code}

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (2'13) 229-530¢
Secorities: regr&?ereétpﬂrmwnﬂ m&ecﬁ@n'}’z hrebibedeely Commen-Stock; TheASbutyStock Market.:.

Securities reglstered pur suant to Section 12{g) of the Aet; None.

Indicate by check mark if'the régistrant 15 a well-knawn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 ofthe Securities Act, YesD  No
Indicate by check mark if the icgistraﬁt is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes 1 Ne &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reponis required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Acl
0f 1934 durng the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes ﬁd No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitied elsctronically and posted on its comporate Web site, if any, every Inferactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files),

YesM No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Ttem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I of this Fom 10-
K or any amendment to this Form 10-K; 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of“largc accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act,
(Check one): .

Large accelerated O Acceleratcd filer & Non-aocelerated filer O Smaller reporting company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act):
Yes  No

hitpsHwarw.sec.gov/Archivesfedgar/date/7 8341 2/000143774816022202/djc020150827_10k.him 1468
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As of March 31, 2015, the. aggregate merket vaiue of Daily Joumal Corporation's voting stock held by non-effiliates was approximately
$5198,239,000, :

As of November 30,2015 there were outstanding 1,3 80,746 shares of Comimon Stock of Daily Journal Corporation,

hitps:/fwrww.sec.gov/Archives/edgarfdatal 783412/000143774915022202/d)co20150927_10x.Hirn 2/86
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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looling Statements

This Form 10-K. inclndes “forward-locking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Seetion 21E of the Sedurities Exchange Act of 1934, as aménded -Cerlain'statements contained in this document, in¢luding -but aot-limited to
those in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, are “forward-looking” statements that
involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual future events or results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking
statements, Words such as “expects,” “Intends,” “anticipates,” “shouid,” “helieves,” “will,” “plans,” “estimates,” “may,” variations of such words
and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-locking statements. We disclaim any intention or obligation to revise eny forward-
looking statements whether as a result of new information, future developments, or otherwise. There are many factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements. These factors include, among others: risks associated with
software development and implementetion efforts; Journal Technologies® reliance on professional services engagements with justice agencies,
including California courts, for a substantial portion of its revenues; material changes in the costs of postage and paper; possible changes in the
law, particularly changes limiting or oliminating the requirements for public notice advertising; possible loss of the adjudicated status of the
Company’s newspapers and their legal authority to publish public notice advertising; a firrther decline in public notice advertising revenues
because of fewer foreclosures; a further desline in subseriber and commercial advertising revenues; possible security breaches of the Company's
software or websites; the Company’s reliance on its president and chief executive officer; changes in accounting guidance; material weaknesses in
the Company’s internal coarol over financial reporting; and declines in the market prices of the securities owned by the Company. In addition,
such statements could be affected by generzl industry and market conditions, general economic conditions (particularly in California) and other
factors. Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements ate reasonable, it can give no
assurance that such expectations will prove to have been correct, Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in
the forward-looking statements are discussed in this Form 10-K, including in conjunction with the forward-looking statements themselves, and in

other documens filed by the Company with the Sscurities and Exchange Commission,

https:iwww.sec.goviArchivesfedgar/data/783412/00014377481502220%2/djeo201 60927 10k.htm 3/66
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PARTI
Item 1, Business

The Company publishe_slnewspapers and web sites covering California and Avizona and produces several specialized information services. Tt
also serves as a newspaper representative specializing in public notice advertising. We often refer to this as “The Traditional Business”,

Joumal Technologiés, The, ("Journal Technologies”), a whoily owned subsidiary of the Company, supplies case managemant software
systems and related products to courts and other justice agencies, including administrative law organizations, county governments and bar
gasociations. These orgunizations use the Journal Technologies family of products fo help manage casss and information electronically, to
interface with other critical justice partnets and to extend electronic services to the public, including a website to pay traffic citations online, and
bar members. These products-are licensed to more than 500 organizations in 41 states and internationally, Journal Technologies is the result of the
October 1, 2014 merger of the Company’s three technology-related subsidiaries, which were previously separate companies: Sustain
Technologies, Ine, (“Svstain™), a wholly owned subsidiary since 2008; New Dawn Technologies, In¢. ("New Dawn™), acquired in December
2012; and 18D Technologies, Inc, (“I8D"™), acquired in September 2013, -

Essentially ail of the Compaiiy’s operations are based in California, Arizona and Utah, Financial information of the Company, including
information about each of thel Company’s repottable segments, is set forth in Item § (“Financial Steterents and Supplementary Data™),

Products and Services
The Traditional Business.

Newspapers and related online publications. The Company publishes 10 newspapers of general circulation. Each newspaper, in addition to
news of inferest to the general public, has & particular area of in-depth focus with regard to its news coverage, thereby attracting readers interested
in obtaining information about that area through a newspaper format, Efféctive October 1, 2015, the Company has discontinued the publication
of the Califomia Lawyer magazine and the California Direstory of Aftomeys. The Company also discontinued publication of the San Diego
Commerce on Septerber 19, 2015 and concumently replaced it through a small acquisition of The Daily Transcript, which serves the San Diego
market, These changes are nol expected to materially impact the Company’s finanoial results.

%&p&bﬁcmm'mw i thefoliowingeiton

Newspaper publications Base of publication
Los Angeles Daily Joumal Los Angsles, Califomia
Daily Commerce Los Angeles, California
San Frapcisco Daily Jouvmal San Francisco, Califomia
"The Daily Recorder Sacramento, Califomia
The Inter-City Express Oakland, California
San Jose Post-Record’ ' San Jose, California
Orange County Reporter ) Santa Ana, California
The Daily Transcript San Diego, California
Business Joumnal : Riverside, Califomia
The Record Reporter Phoenix, Atizona

3
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The Daily Jowrnals. The Los Angeles Daily Joumnal and the San Francisco Daily Journal are each published every weekday except certain
holidays and were established in 1888 and 1893, respectively. In addition to covering state and local news of general interest, these newspapers
focus particular coverage on law and its impact on soclety, (The Los Angeles Daily Journal and the San Francisco Daily Joumal are referred fo
collectively hérein as *The Daily Journals") Genesally The Daily Joumals sesk to be of special utility to lawyers and judges and to gain wide
muttiple teadership of hewspapers sent to law firm subscribers,

The Daily Journals:contain much material and render many services in a common endeavor. The Los Angeles Daily Joumal is the largest
newspaper published by the Company, both in terms of revenues and circylation. At September 30, 2015, the Los Angeles Daily Journal had
approximately 5,300 paid subscribers and the San Francisco Daily Journz] had approximately 2,700 paid subseribers as compared with total paid
subseriptions for both of The Paily Journals of 8,200 at September 30, 2014, The Daily Joumnals carry commercial advertising (display and
classified} and public notice advertising required or permitted by faw to be published in a newspaper of general circulation, The main source of
commercial advertising revenue has been {noal advertisers, law firms and businesses in or wishing to reach the legal professional community, The
gross revenues genstated directly by The Daily Joumals are attibutable approximately 64% to subscriptions and 36% to the sale of advertising
and other revenues, Revenues from The Daily Jonmals constituted approximately 18% ofthe Company's total fiscal 2015 revenves, 19% in 2014,
23%1n2013,28% in 2012 and 27% in 2011,

It is the palicy of The Daily Journals (1) to take no editorial position on the fegal and political controversies of the day but instead te publish
well-written editorial views of others on many sides ofa controversy and (2) to fry Lo report on factual events with technical competence and with
objectivity and sceuracy: Tt is believed that this policy snits a professional readership of exceptional intelligence and education, which is the
target readership for the newspapers, Moreover, The Daily Journals believe that they bear a duty to their readership, particularly judges and
justices, as 4 self-imposed public trust, regardless, within reason, of short-term income penalties, The Company believes that this policy of The
Daily Journalsis in the long-term jnterest of the Company’s shareholders.

The Daily Joumnals contain the Daily Appellate Report which provides the full text and case summaries of all opinions certified for
publication by the Califomnia Supreme Court, the Califomia Courts of Appeal, the U.8, Supreme Court, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth
Cirenit, the U.S. Banknuptey Appellate Panel for the Ninth Cirouit, the State Bar Court-and: setected opimions-of the U8, District Courts- in
California and the Federal Citeuit Court of Appeals. The Daily Joumals alse include 4 monthly court directory in booklef form. This directory
includes a comprehensive list of sitting judges in all California courts as well as courtroom assignments, plione numbers and courthouse
addresses, plus "Tudicial Transitions" which lists judicial appeintments, slevations, canfirmations, resignations, retirements and deaths,

The Paity Toumale are: distributed- byt ame hand; debiveryy witbssubseribers in.theLas.Angeles and San Erancisco. areas usually receiving,,

copies the same day. Certain subseribers in Los Angeles, San Francisco, Santa Clara, Alameda, Omnge, San Disgo, Riverside and San Bemardino
counties receive copies by hand delivery. The regular yearly subscription rate for each of The Draily Journalsis $788,

4
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Much ofthe informatton containad in The Daily Journals is available to subseribers online st www.daityjournal.com.

Daily Commerce. Published sincs 1917, the Daily Commercs, based in Los Angeles, in addition to covering news of general interest, devotes
subsaniial ‘coverage to items*designed to serve feal estate investots and brokers; particularly those interested in Southem Califomia distressed
properties. The nature of the news coverage enhances the effectiveness of public notice advertising in distributing information about foreclosures
to potential buyers at foreclosures. The features of the paper include default listings and probate estate sales. The Daily Commerce carmes both
public notice and commercial-advertising and is published in the afternoon each business day.

The Daily Recorder: The-Daily Recorder, based in Sacramento, bogan operations in 1911, It is published each business day. In addition to
general news items, it fochses on the Sacramento legal and real estate communities and on California state government and activities ancillary to
it. Among the regular features of The Daily Recorder is news about government leaders and lobbyists, as well as the Daily Appellate Report for
those who request it, Advertising in The Daily Recorder consists of both commercial and public notice advertising.

The Inter-City Express. The Intex-City Express (the "Express”) has been published sinee 1909. Tt covers general news of local interest and
focuses its coverage on news about the real estate and logal communities in the Oakland/San Francisco area. The Express carries both commercial
and public notice advertising. It is published each business day.

San Jose f?osf—Recoi‘c;t'. The San_Jose-Post-R_f;cérd (the "Post-Record") has been published since 1914, In addition to general news of local
interest, the Post-Record; which is published each business day, focuses on legal and real estate news and carries commercial and public notice

advertising,

Orange Céun tv Reporter. The Orange County Reporter ("Orange Reporter') has been an adjudicated newspaper of general circulation since
1922, In addition to general news of local interest, the Orange Reporter reports local and state legal, business and real estate news, and caries
primarily public notice advettising: The Orange Reporter is published three days a week,

The Daily Tanseript. The Daily Transcrint (San Diego) is published five daysa week: and-carrfes-general nows of locat interest-and public
notice advertising and has been an adjudicated newspaper of general circulation since 1909, The Daily Transcript also serves legal and real estate
professionals in San Diego County,

Business Jowrnal. The Business Joumnal, established in 1991, publishes news of general interest and provides coverage of the business and

pm-’ﬂ‘ﬂm?.arx-al;mnmmhﬁwiu@dwmidm@mnm&u&maaxri.z&-puhlhenmﬁ&cammisim@im,i&pmﬁshﬁd.mix.huaims&daﬁyw .

The Record Reporter (Arizona). The Record Reporter has been in existence since 1914, In addition fo general news of local interest, The
Record Reporter, which is published three days a week, focuses on legal news and public record information and carries primarily public notice

advertising,

Information Services, The specialized information services offered by the Compeany have grown out of its newspaper operations or have
evolved in response to a desire for such services primarily from its newspaper subscribers.
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The Company has several couirt rules services, One is Court Rules, a multi-volume, loose-leaf set. Court Rules reproduces court rules for
certain state anid federal cousts in California, The Court Rules appear in two versions, one of which covers Northem California courts {nine
* volumes) and one of which covers Southern Catifomnia courts {eight volumes). The Company updates Court Rules on # monthly basis, In addition,
the Compény piblishés a singlé volume of tes known as Locel Rules for inajor counties of Califomia, Six versions are published for Southemn
California, each a single bound volunte for the rules of: (1) Los Angeles County; (2) Orange County; (3) San Diego County; (4} San Bemardino
County; (5) Riverside County; and {6) Ventura, Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties. Also, the Company publishes single-volume rules
for the Federal District Court in the Central District of California and Celifomia Probate Rules. In Northern Califomia, three versions of the Local
Rules appear in'loose-leaf books for Santa Clara/San Mateo, Alameda/Contrg Costa and San Francisco counties, The single volumes are normally
updated or replaced whenever there are substantial ryle changes.

The Judicial Profiles services contain information congerning nearly all active and retired judges in California, Most of the profiles have
praviously appeared in The Daily Joumals as part of a regular feature. The Tudicial Profiles include blographmal data and financial digclosure
statements on Judges and information supplied by each judge regarding the judge’s policies and views on various trial and appeilats procedures
and the manner in which appearances are conducted In his or her courfroom, Subscribers may purchase either the ten-velume set for Southern
Celifornia or the eight-volume set for Northern California,

The Company also provides online foreclosure information to about 40 customers. This service primarily provides distressed property
information, some of which also. appears in some of the Company's newspapers, as well as expanded features. Consolidation of both newspapers
and online products more cﬂ‘ccnvely utilizes the costs of gathering such information.

Adver; a‘r.s‘mg and Newspape; Replesenmnve The Company's publications carry commersial advertising, and most alse contain public notice
advertising, Cémmercial advemsmg congists of display and classified advertising and constituted about 8% of the Company’s total revenues in
fiscal 2015, $% in 2014, 11% in 2013, 15% in 2012 and 14% in 2011, Classified advertising has continued to decline primarily dus to the
continued dowaturn in the employment advertising marketplace and competition from online employmens web sites.

Public notice advertising consists of many different types of tegat notices required by law to be published in an adjudicated newspaper of
general eirculation, including notices of death, fictiticus business names, trustee sale notices and notices of govemmental hearings. The major
types of public notice adverlisers are veal estate-related businesses and trustees, govemnmental agencies, ettomeys and businesses or individuals
filing fictitious business name statements; Many government agencies use the Company's Intemet-based adverlising system lo produce and send
their notices o the Company. A fictitious buginess name web site enables individuals to send their statements to the Company for filing and
pubtication, and.another web. site enablesattomeys and individuals to send.prabate, civil, corporate, public sate. and other types ofpublic notices
to the Company. California Newspaper Service Burcau ("CNSB™), & division of the Company, is a statowide newspaper representaiive
(commission-gaming selling agent) specializing sines 1934 in public notice advertising. CNSB places public notices and other forms of
advertising with adjudicated newspapers of general circulation, most of which are not owned by the Company.

hittpsitAanwnw.sec.goviArchivesfedgar/data/7 8341 2/000143774915022202/djco201 50927 _10k.him 7166




912018 h 6c020150927_10K him

Public nofice advertising revenues and related advertising and other service fees, including trustee sales legal advertising revenues,
constituted aboat 22% of the Company's total revenues in fiscal 2015, 24% in 2014, 35% in 2013, 56% in 2012 and 58% in 2011, Most of these
revenues were generated by (iynofices published in the Company’s newspapers, (ii) commissions and similar fees received from other publications
in Which the adveitising was placéd and (iii} service fees generated when filing notices with govemment agencies. '

Trustee sales legal advertising revenues alone represented about 6% of the Company’s fotal revenues in fiscal 2013, 7% in 2014, 17% in
2013, 56% in 2012 and 58% in 2011, For several yoars, thess revenues were driven by the large number of foreclosures in California and Arizona,
for which public nofice advertising is required by law, but the number of foreciosures has continued to decline, In addition, in many states,
including California and Arizona, legislatures have considered various proposals which would result in the elimination or reduction of the
amount of public notice advertising required by statute. There is & risk that such laws could change in a manner that would have a significant
adverse impact on the Company's public notice advertising revenues,

Other revenues gre attributable to service fees fom nsers of an online foreclosure/fictitious business name datsbase, fees from attomeys taking
continuing legal educatioh “Courses™ published in the Company’s publications and other miscellaneous fees.

Jonrnal Technologles

Tournal Technologies provides case management seftware and related services to courts and other justice agencies. It operations constituted
about 57% of the Company's total fevenues in fiscal 2013, 53% in 2014,37% in 2013, 9% in 2012 and 9% in 2011 (with the 2011-2012 numbers
reflecting Sustain only), Jowmal Technologies earas revenus fom license and maintenance fees paid by customers to use its software products;
consulting Tees paid by customers for installation, implementation and training services; and fees generated by the use of secure websites through
which the genetal publiccan pay zeffic citations. Joumal Technologies has the following main products:

eCourt®, eProsecutor; eDefender-and eProbation.— browser-based case processing systems that can be used by courts and other justice
agencies for all case types because its screens, data elements, business rules, work queucs, searches and alerts are highly configurable, Joumnal
Technalogies also supports its prior generation Justive Editfon-software; which is'a Windaws-based systen that also provides for customizable
configurability: ’

JustWare® — a family of case management sofiware products for vse by courts and other justice agencies, JustWare® provides a
standardized case mamagement system that includes business rules to sutomate tasks, document and report generation, digital signatures and
shortouty tnspesdriata inpub. Josmak Technologiesalse- doensesite JusticeWebBpublic.acoesssaftware, which allows the public ta. view cextain,
case information, provides a means to create permission-based access for sensitive data, allows pro se litigants and aftomeys to e-file documents
and fncludes a way for ease participants to make payments online. :

ICMST™ —— a coutt ca.sé menagement system, which was acquired as part of the acquisition of the ISD assets. Joumal Technologies also
licenses CASE™ — an automated probation case management system, including juvenile hall detention management features,
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¢File™ — g browser—base_d interface that allows alfomeys and the general public (o eleciionically file docuiments with the court from a
personal computer using the Inteinét at any time.

ePaylt™ 3 service for fhe online payment of traffic citations. Users éan pay traffic citations using the Intemct a¢ any time with a credit
card, and can obtain traffic school and other information.

Almost all of Journal Technelogies’ cusfomers are govemment agencies, and most new software installation and licensing projects are
subject to competitive bidding procedures, Accordingly, the ability of Journsal Technologies to get new customers is highly unpredictable. In
addition, budget constraints, especially during stressful economic times, could force govemmental agencies to defer or forgo consulting services
or even to stop paying their annual software maintenance fees. As & technology-based company, Joumal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of

the Company’s expenses.

The Comp'éihy‘s revenves from Journal Technologies’ foreign customers were $278,000 in fiscal 2015, $332,000 in fiscal 2014, and $301,000
in fiscal 2013. All ofthe Company’s other revenues in those years were attributable to the United States.

W aterials and Postage

After persannel costs (included in“Salaries and employee benefits” and in “Oytside services” in the.accompanying consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (loss)), postage and paper costs are typically the Company’s next two largest expenses. Paper and postage accounted for
approximately 6% of our traditional publishing segment's operating costs in fiscal 2015, 7% in 2014, 7% in 2013, 6% in 2012 and 6% in 2011,
Paper prices nigy fluctudte: siibsfantially in the futuse, and periodic postal rate increases could significantly impact income from operations.

Purther, we may not be ablé to'péss on such increases to our customers,
i - [ RS T .

An adequate supply of newsprint and othet paper is important to the Company's operations, The Company currently dees not have a contract
with any paper supplier. The Company has always bsen able to obtain sufficient newsprint for its operations; attheughr in-the past; shortages-of
newsprint have sometimes resulted in higher prices, The price of paper remained unchanged during fiscal 2015, We anticipate the price of paper
will remain unchanged at least through Juns 2016,

Wo use the U S. Postal Service for distribution of a majority of our newspapers, During the past several years, the Company has instituted
changegiram attempt fomitreaie higherpostage-custs: Theswchnngeshavedncluded-contracting. forhand.deliveny inaelected sections.afthe San ..
Francisco Bay #rea and in-Santa Clara, Alamgda, San Diego, Riverside, San Bemardino, Orange and Los Angeles counties, delivering pre-sorted
newspapers to the post oftice on pallets, Which facilitates delivery and improves service, and implementing a method of bundling newspapers
which reduces the per piese charges. In addition, the Company Ras an ink jet labeler which eliminates paper labels and enables the Company to
recetve bar code discounts from the postal service on some ofits newspapers, '

Postal rates arc dcpendent on the operating efficiency of the U1.S, Postal Service and on legislative mandates imposed upon the 1.5, Postal
Service, During the past séveral years, the U.S, Postal Service has increased postal rates. There were decreases in the Company’s postage costs
during fiscal 2015 primatily due to fewer subscribers,
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Marketing

The Company __ac_t_iyglx“pfé'gigfccg its individual newspapers and its multiple newspaper network as well as its other publications, The
Company's staff-includes "a numbér of employess “whe'se “primary “résponsibilities ‘ificlude "attracting ‘new ‘subseribers ‘and “advertisers, The
specialization of each publication creates both tayget subscribers and target sdvertisers, Subscribers are likely to be attracted because of the nature

of the information camried by the particular publication, and likely advertisers arc those interested in reaching such consumer groups, In marketing
products, the Company also focuses on its ancillary products which can be of service to subscribers, such as its specialized information services.

The Company receives, &0 & non-exclusive basis, public notice advertising from a number of agencies, Such agencies ordinarily receive a
commission of 15% to 25% on their sales of advertising in Company publications. Commercial advertising agencies also place advertising in
Company publications and recefve commissions for advertising sales,

Joumal Technologies® staff includes employees who provide marketing and consulting services which may also result in additional
consulting projects and the licensing of products. Most of Joumal Technologies' new projects come from existing customers or fom a

competitive bidding process.
Competition -

Competition for readers and advertisers is very intense, both by established publications and by new enfries into the market. The Daily
Joumals face aggressive competition, including amazingly low prices for multiple copy subscriptions, fiom law-orfented newspapers in Los
Angeles and San Francisco, All of the Company's business publications emd products face strong competition from other publications and service
companies. Readers of specialized newspapers focus on the amount and quality of general and specialized news, amovnt and type of advertising,
timely delivery and price. The Company designs its newspapers to £1l niches in the nows marketplace that are not covered as well by major
metropolitan dailies. The in-depth news coverage which the Company's newspapers provids along with general news coverage attracts readers
who, for personal or professional reasons, desire {o keep abreast of topics to which & major newspaper cannot devote significant news space. Other
newspapers do provide some of the same subject coverage as does the Company, but the Company belteverits coverage; partcutarty that of The--
Daily Jouraals, is more complete and therefore atiracts more readers. The Company believes that The Daily Journals are the most important

newspapers serving California lawyers on a daily basis.

The Company’s court rulés pulslications face competition in both the Southem California and Northermn California markets from enline court
rules services and the courtethemsetves: Subserptions o themulti-velumerConrt Rudes-and.Locak Rules.velumes.continued. to. decline during,
fiscal 2015, Thé Company's Judicial Profile services have direct competition and algo indirect competition, because some of the sams information
is available through other soutées; incleding the courts.
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The steady decline in recent years in the number of subscriptions to The Daily Joumals and the Company 's court mife publications is likely to
continue and will certainly fmpact the Company’s fature revenues. The pricing of the Company's produets is reviewed every year. Subscription
price increases have in recent years exceeded inflation, as have advertising rate increases.

In attracting commercial advertisers, the Company competes with other newspapers and magazines, television, radio and other media,
inclyding electronic and online systems for employment-related ¢lassified advertising, Factors which may affect competition for advertisers are
the cost for such advertising compared with other media, and the size and characteristics of the readership of the Company's publications,

Intemet sites devoted to recruitment have become significant competitors of our newspapers and web sites for classified advertising, In
addition, there-has been a steady consclidation of companies serving the legal marketplace, resulting in an ever-smaller group of companies
placing display advertising. Consequently, rétaining advertising revenues remains a challénge,

The Company competes with anywhere from onc serious competitor to many competing newspapers for public notice advertising revenue in
all of its markéts. Large metropolitan general interest newspapers nommally do not cany a significant amount of legal advertising, although
recently they too have solicited cerfain types of public notice advertising, CNSB, the Company's commission-eaming selling agent, faces
competition from a number of companies based in California, some of which specialize in placing certain types ofnotices.

There is significant competition among a limited number of companies to provide services and software to the courts and other justice
agencles, and some of these edripanies are much largér and have greater access fo capital and other resonrces than Journal Technologies, Others
provide services for a limited number of customers. As part of the competitive bidding process, many customers will express a preference for, or
even require, latger vendars, .

Many customers desire Intemet-based solutions (o centralize operations, facilitate electronic filing and other interfaces with other justice
partners and the public, and publish certain information from case management systems, Joumal Technologies’ product lines provide versions of
these services, but there are many uncertainties in the process of courts and other agencies migrating to newer Internet-based systems, including
whether Joumal Technologies’ versions of case manzgement systems will find gemerst aceeptance: and whether: the update, upgrade and
modification of such systems can be done in a cost effective manner The Company competes on a variety of factoss, including price,
technological capabilities and services to accommodate the individual requirements of each customer.

Employees

The Company has approximately 320 full -time employeses and contractors and about 30 part-time employees and contractors as of September
10,2015, This includes about 150 full-time employees and contractors and 20 part-time employees and contractors of Journal Technologies. The
Company is not a party to any collective bargaining agreements, Certain benefits, including medical insurance, are provided to all fall-time
employees. Management considers its employes relations to be goed.

The Company relies heavily on Gerald Salzmar, whe serves as president, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, treasurer and assistant
secrelary, If Mr; Salzman’s services were no longer available fo the Company, it is unlikely that the Company could find a single replacement to
perform all of the duties now handled by him, and it conid have a significant adverse effect on the Company’s business. The Cempany does not
carry key man Hfs insurance, nor has it entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Salzman.
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Worlking Caplital

Traditionaily, the Company has generated sufficient cash flow fom operations to cover all its needs without significant bomowing. To a
considerable extent, the Company “benefits fom the tact ‘that ‘subsériptions-and “soife licerises, maintenance and:consulting fees are paid in
advance. In addition, the aggregate market value of the securities owned by the Company has increased significantly in recent ycars (although
fiscal 2015 was an exoeption), providing the Company with even more working capital, subject, of course, to the normal risks associated with
owning stocks and bonds, In Desember 2012, the Company berrowed §14 million from its investment margin account to purchase all of the
antstanding stock of New Dawn, and in September 2013, it borowed ancther $15.5 million to acquire substantially all of the operating assets and
liabilities of ISD, in each case pledging its marketable securitics to obtain faverable financing.

The Company believes it has sufficient cash and marketable seouritios for the foreseeable futnre, If the Company’s overail cash needs exceed
cash flow from operations and its current wosking capitel, the Company may still have the ability to borrow against its marketable securities on
favorable terms as it did for the New Dawn and 18D acquisitions, or it may attempt to seoure additional financing which may or may not bo

available on acceptable terms. - - - :

The Company extends unsecured credit to most of its advertising customers, The Company mainfains a reserve account for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of thess customers to make required payments, but if the financial conditions of these customers were to deteriorate or
the Company’s judgments about their abilities to pay are incorrect, additional allowances might be required, and the Company’s cash flows and
results of operations could bé materially affected.

Inflation

The effects of inflation ‘are not significantly any more or less adverse on the Company's businesses than they are on other publishing and
software companies, The Company has experienced the effects of inflation primarily through increases in costs of personnel, newsprint, postage
and services, These costs have generslly boen offet by periodic price increases for advertising and subseription rates, but with frequent
exceptions during several years when the Company has experienced substantiat increases i postage and newsprint expenses and additicnat costs
related to acquisitions, = .

Aceess to Our Information

Wefile-ansmral, quarterky and.cument reporis, proxy. statomentsand.other information with. the. Secumities.and Exchangs Commission.{ SECT)..
These filings are not available on ur website, www.dailyjoumal.com, which is generally dedicated to the content of our publications. We will,
however, provide these filings in electronic or paper format free of charge upon request addressed to our Secretary at our principal executive
offices. Our SEC filings are also available to the public ever the Intemet at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The public may also read and copy
any dooument we file at the SEC’s public reference room located at 100 F Street N.E,, Washington, D.C. 20549, Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330 for further information on ¢he operation of the public reference room.
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Ttem 1A, Risk Fa ctors

The foregoing business diseussion znd the other information included in this ¥Form 10K should be read in conjunction with the following
risks, frends and uncertainties, dny of which, either individually or in the aggregate, could materially and adversely affect our business, operating
results or financial condition.  © T :

Risks Assneiated with Tlijé Trﬁdiﬁonél Business

A continuing reduction in the number of residential foreclosures in California and Arizona will resull in Jewer trustee sale notices belng
published in the Company s newspapers.

For soveral years, the tevenues of The Traditional Business wore diiven by the Jarge number of foreclosures in California and Arizona, for
which public riotice advertising is required by law. The number of foreclosures continued fo decline in 2015 and is expected to continue to
decline in 2016. Along with improvements in the economy, the California Homeowner's Bill of Rights imposed new requirements efective
Jamnary 1, 2013 that have contributed to the slowdown in foreclosures. We expect this trend to continue, and it will significantly impact the
eamings of The Traditiona] Business because it will be impractical for the Company to offset the revenue loss with expense reductions.

Changes in the Ieg:_ﬂ }'eqm'ijemegzt to publish public notice advertising or in the legal ability of our newspapers to publish those notices
would have g significant aédverse impact on The Traditional Business.

From time to time, the legislatures in California and Arizona (and elsswhere) have considered various proposals that would result in the
elimination or r§ducti0n'bf_tha—amQUnt of public notice advertising in printed newspapers required by statute. These proposals typically foous on
the availability of altemnative mieans of providing public notices, such as via the Infemet. Some proposals also question the need for public notices
at all. Should any of these propasals become law, particularly in Californiz, they would materially affect the revenues of The Traditional Business,

In addi(ion_; if ilie adjudication, which is what gives publishers the legal ability to publisir pulsite: wotice gdvertising, of one-or more-of the-
Company's newspapers was challenged and revoked, those newspapers would no longer be eligible to publish public notice advertising, and it
could materially affect the revenues of The Traditional Business.

The Traditional Business faces sirong competition in each of its markets.

Competition for readers and advertisers is very intense, both from established publications and ffom new entrants into the market. The Daily
Journals face aggressive competition, including amazingly low prices for multiple copy subscriptions from law-oriented newspapers in Los
Angeles and San Francisco, The Company's court nules publications face competition in bath Northem and Southemn California from eonline court
rules services and the courts themselves. The steady decline in recent years in the number of subseriptions 1o The Daily Journals and the court rule
publications is likely to continue and will cettainly impact The Traditional Business’ future revenues,
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The Traditional Business also competes with anywhers from one sérious competitor to many competing newspapers for public notice
advertising in &1l of its markets, As the amount of this advertising has decreased duo to the reduetion in the number of forectosures discussed
above, the competition to publish-ili¢ remaining public notices has intensified and may result in a further decline in The Traditional Business’
public notics advertising revenies. - '

The Traditional Business confinves lo experience challenges in maintaining ifs commercial advertising and circulation revenues,
particularly due fo the growth of Internet sites,

Intemet sites devoted to recruitment have become significant competitors of our newspapers and web sites for classified advertising. In
addition, there has been a steady consolidation of companies serving the legal marketplace, resulting in an ever-smaller group of companies
placing display-advertising, Furthsrmore, newspapers like ours have beon stmggling to compete for display advertising generally, given the many
other forums (including Internet sites) that compste for advertising dollars. These trends are expected to continue and will adversely affect The
Traditional Business. o

Circulation revenues haye continued to decline as more and more information has become available fom the internet, Law firm metgers have
also reduced the number of firms that purchase multiple subscriptions of our newspapers. It is not practical to assume that we will be able to offset
the decline in subscaiptions with increases in the subscription rate, and we expect that our circulation revenues will continue to decline.

The Traditional Business is exposed lo risks associated-with fluctuations in postage and paper costs,

After personnel costs, postage and paper costs are typically the Company’s next two largest expenses. An adequate supply of newsprint and
other paper is important to the operations of The Traditional Business, The Company currsatly does not have a contract with any paper suppliet,
and in the pasf; shortages of newsprint have sometimes resulted in higher prices. The price of paper has remaimed unchanged since fiscal year
2013, and we expect it to remain unchanged at least through June 2016. :

The Traditional Susiness uses the U.S, Posta! Service for distdbutior of amajortty of its mevspapersand magazine: Postal rates are dependent
on the operating cfficiency of the U.8, Postal Servics and on legislative mandates imposed upon the U.3, Postal Service, Dwing the past several
years, postal rates have increased, Postal rates und fees may increase more in the future, Further, we may not be able to pass on increases in paper
and postage costs {o our customers.

Risks Assosiatedrwitinlonrnal Technotogios.

The success of Journal J‘éciﬂroiog!es depends in large pavt on the technological update and upgrade of its software products.

Joumal Technologies' success depends on the continued improvement of its products, and the costs to update and upgrade those products
consistently represent a large portion of Joumal Technologies® expenses. There are many uncertainties in the process of courts and other justice
agencies migrating to newer case management systems, including whether Joumal- Technologies® versions of these systems will find general

acceptance and whether the modification of such systems can be done in & cost effective manner, The costs to update and upgrade Journal
Technologies’ products are expensed as incurred and will fmpact samings at Jeast through the foreseeable fisture,
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Jowrnal Technologies faces significant competition from other case management software vendors.

There is significant competition among a limiled number of companies to provide services and software to courts and other justice agencies,
and some of thése companies ‘aie much larger 'and have greater access to capital and other resources than Joumal ‘Technologies. Normally, the -
vendor {s selected through a bidding process, and often the customers will express a preference for, or even require, larger vendors. An inability to
successfully compete in this difficult market could materially affect the eamings ofJi ournal Technologies. '

The customers of Jouraal Technologies are public seclor entities, which create special issues and risks.

Substantially all of the ciistomers of Journal Technologies are courts, justice agencies, and other government entities, Accordingly, we face
special risks associated with govermnmental budget constraints, especially during stressful economic times, which could foree govemment entities
to defer or forego consulting services or even stop paying their annual software license and maintenance fees. In addition, we encounter rigks
related to a lomger and more complicated sales cycle than exists for commercial customers; political issues related to resource allocation,
administration tumover and preferences for intemal case management salutions or for a particular vendor; complicated bidding procedures; and
fiuctuations in the demand for information technology produsts and services.

Journal Technologies generally recognizes revenues for software installations only upon completion of the applicable services and
customer acceptance of the software system.

In most cases, the fees paid o Journal Technelogies for installation services and software licenses are at risk until the customer has indicated
its satisfaction with the installed system and it has “gone live”. Also, we utilize the completed coniract method of accounting because the
customer’s aceéptance is typically unpredictable and reliable estimates of the progress towards completion cannot be made. Accordingly, we do
not recognize fevenues for installation services or licenses or for mest other consulting services until after the services have been perfonmed, and
there are significant tisks associated with our ability to complete our services to the satisfaction of our customers and to fulfill the requirements
that entitle us to be paid. An inability to realize payment for services performed could materially affect the eamings of Journal Technologiss.

Risks Associated with Our Holdings of Marketable Securities
A lavge portion of the Company's assets is held in publicly fraded securities, and the prices of those securitics may decline.

As.of Septemben 38,2045, the.Company. hald matketable securities worth approximately $166,041,000, with an unrealized gain for financial
statement puzposes of $111,498,000. While this pertfalio has enabled the Company to borrow on very favorable terms for the New Dawn and ISD
acquisitions and to better compete for case management softwars cpporiunities that are usually limited to “large” firms, it ts yrsnal for a public
company to inyest a significant amount of its available cash in the markefable securities of other public companies, The value of these securifies
could declins, which would adversely affect sharchelders’ equity.
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Also, as of September 30, 2015, the Company’s holdings of marketable securities were concentrated in just seven companies and included
two based in foreign cwirencies, Accordingly, & significant decline in the market value and unfavorable changes in the foreign exchangs rates of
one or more of the Company ‘.s'_l;é]‘dii.lg_s may not be offset by hypothetically better performance of other holdings. This concentration of risk may
result in & miote pronounced effect on shareholders’ equity,. R

In certain afrcmns.tmrce.ﬁ-ﬂlé'Ckonpmijf may be required 1o recognize losses in a parficular security Jor financial statement purposes even
though the Company has not actually sold the security,

Even if the Company's marketable securities as a whole perform extraordinarily well, for accounting remsons, an “other than temporary
impaitment” in a particular security may result in the need to recognize a loss with respect to that security in the Company’s incoms statement ina
particular period, This has happened this fiscal year and in the other two previous fiscal years prior to last yeat, and it may happen again in the
future with respect to the same securities or other securities owned by the Company. This requirement to recognize a loss could have a material
effect on the Company’s earnings in a particular period, Also, st times, the Company may hold marketable securities denominated in currencies
other than the United States Dollar. When it does, the Compeany may be st risk for significant fluctustions in the applicable fereign cumency
exchange rates, which would affest the profitability of such marketable securities.

General Corporate Risks :
The Compc_r}fy relies heavilp on the services of Gerald Salzman.

Gerald Sa]Zman, 74, sé‘:fvgas;-gg the Company’s president, chisf executive officer, chief financial officer, treasurer and assistant secretary. He is
also the president, chief executive officer, chief financial officer and secretary of Joutnal Technologies, I Mr. Salzman’s services were no longer

available to the Company, it isunlikely that the Company could find a single replacement to perform sl of the duties now handled by him, and it
could have a significant adverse effect on the Company s business. The Company does not carry key man Hfo insurance, nior has it enterec into an
smployment agreement with Mt, Salzman.

Changes in accounting guidance could have a significant effect on the Company s reported financial results,

Preparing consolidated financial statements requires the Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied
amount of assets, liabilities; revenues and expenses, These estimates and assumptions are affected by management’s application of accounting
palicies amd the prevaiting- avcouning-guideneer Ther Compamg womsiders: fair vabue. measirement.. and. disclosuzes, rexenue. tecagnition,,
acoounting for software costs, accounting for business combinations, testing for goodwill and intangible impairments and income faxes to be

critical accounting policies and estimates. A change in the accounting guidance with respect to one or more of these areas could materially affect
the Company's reported financial results. )
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We cannot be syre that cusfomer infornation and systems are fully protecied against security breaches.

Journal Technologies® sofiware processes and stores oustomer information in the conduet of its business, including in some cases by utilizing
a clond-bassd ystem supplied by B third-party véiidor, Despite diir eiforts to maintain Gp-to-date security controls, it is possible that our system
could be improperly used: to aceess or misappropsiate customer systems or information, including personally identifiable or other confidential
information, A maserial security breach of this nature could hamm our reputation, cause us to lose current and potential customers, require us fo
allocate more resources to information security, or subject us or our cugtomess to liability, resulting in increased costs, loss of revenus, or both,
The Traditional Business also operates certain websites that process and, in certain cases, store costomer information. A minor security breach
was discovered on a website operated by The Traditional Business in early fiscal 2015, and although it was remediated, there can be ne assurance
that there will not be more material breaches in the future. Also, our insurance may not cover all of the costs that we may incur as a resuit of a

material security breach, ~ .

The Company has identified certain material weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting.

The Company has identified certain matsrial wealtnesses in its internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting has been designed to provide management and the Board of Directors with reasonable assnrance regarding the preparation and
fair presentatién of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. As a small company, we have eight experienced employees in the
accovunting department and three in the IT department. Accordingly, we are not able to segregate duties to the extent we could if we had mere
people, and we have not sufficiently designed and documented controls that support an effective assessment of our internal controls relating to
the prevention of fraud and possible management ovenide of controls. Further, the Compeny does not have sufficient technical expettise in
assessing and ppplying atgounting standards to complex and/or non-routing transactions, reviewing the quarterly and annual tax analysis snd
provision, and Bssessing the _adqqﬁa%j! of disclosures in the quarterly and annual consolidated financial statements.

We believe that our 6verall internal control envitonment is sufficient for & company of our size. However, the existence of material
weaknesses means that there i 2 reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our financial statements will not be prevented or detected

on a timely basis. This may result in legal, operational, financial and regulatory issues, For more information regarding the material weaknesses,
the mitigating controls used by the Company and certain remedial steps being taken or considered, please see Part 11, Item 9A Controls and

Procedures. - -

_ Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments-

None,
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Item 2, Properfies

The Company owns office and printing facilities in Los Angeles and office space in Logan, Utah and leases space for ils other offices under
operating leases which expire at various dates through 2020, o o

‘The main Los Angeles property is cornprised ofa twa-story, 34,000 square foot building constructed in 1990, which is fully ocoupied by the
Company. Approximately 75% of the building is devoted to office space and the remainder to printing and production equipment and facilities.
Tn 2003, the Company finished building an adjacent 37,000 square foot building and parking facilities on properties i acquired in 1596 and
1998, This building provides additional office, production and storage space. The Cornpany and Joumal Technologies occupy this building’s first
floor and will complete the build-out of the second floor as needed.

Tn November 2015, the Company purchased a 30,700 square foot office building constructed in 1998 on about 3.6 acres in Logan, Utah that
had been previously leased for Joums! Technologies.

The Company leases approximately 6,200 square feet of office space (expiring in October 2019) in San Francisco. Journal Technologies
leases about 7,100 square fest of office space (expiring ir March 2017} in Corong, California, In addition, the Company rents facilities in each of
the remaining cities where its staff {s located on a month-to-month basis or pursuant to leases generally of no longer than three years’ duration,
The Company betieves that it has adequate office spacs. :

See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information conceming rents payable under leases.

<

LR

Item 3. Legal Pro ceedings

From timeto time, the Company-is subject to litigation arising in the nomal course of its business. While it is not possible fo predict the
results of such litigation, management does not believe the uliimate outcome of these types of matters will liave a material adverse cffoct on the
Company’s financial position orresults of operations or cashr flows:

Ttem 4, Mine Safefy Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PartIl
Item 5, Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matiers and Lssuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table scté_-f‘ﬂ:th'the salos prices of the Company’s common stoek for the perlods indicated. Quotations are as reported by the
NASDAQ Capital Market, . '

. High Low
Fiscal 2015
Quarter ended December 31, 2014 b 28051 % 173.97
Quarter ended March 31,2015 25325 168.90
Quarter ended June 30,2015 222.50 183,61
Quarter ended September 30,2015 224,17 183.67
Fiscal 2014 —
Quarter ended Dec'_i;'mber?a 1,2013 3 i91.85 3§ 134.06
Quarter ended March 31,2014 194,87 154,12
Quarter ended June 30,2014 219.68 161.17

Quatier ended September 30,2014 . ' 210,00 168.07

As of December 2, 2011_51-,-‘,th'§'re ;m_a:ré approximately 540 holders of record of the Company's common stock, and the last trade was at $212.54
per share, : .

The Company did not declare or pay any dividends during fiscal 2015, 2014 or2013. A determination by the Company whether or not to pay
dividends in the fiture will depend orr mmmerous factors; including the Company’s camings, cash flow, financial condition, capital requisements,.
future prospects, acquisition opportunities, and other relevant factors. The Board of Directors does not expect that the Company will pay any
dividends or other distributions to shareholders in the foreseeable fiture.

The Company does not have any equity compensation plans, and it did not sell any securities, whether or not registered under the Securities
Aok o 1929, duringthepaskthuse fiscak near.. '

From Hing to time, the Company has repurchased shares of its common stock and may continue to do so. The Company maintains a common
stock repurchase program that was implemented in 1987 in combination with the Company’s Management Incentive Plan, See Note 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for more information, The Company's stoek repurchase program remains in effect, but the Company did not
repurchase any shares during fiscal 2615 or 2014, :
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The following graph shows a five-year comparisen of cumulative total retum on the Company's comman stock, Standard & Poor's 500
Composite Index, Standard & Poor’s Publishing MidCap Index and Standard & Poor’s Software & Services Select Industry Index, assuming $100
was invested on September 30, 2010, and all dividends were reinvested, The Company has not declared a dividend in any of the fiscal years
shown, K o ‘

e Daily Journal Corperation
. Toetal Cumulative Shareholder Retarn for Five Years Ended September 30, 2015
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The following sets fortl selected firancial data for the Company as of, and for each of the five years ended September 30, 2015. Such data
should be read in conjunction with, and i§ qualified in-its'entirety by reference to, the Cormipany's consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto and “Midnagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiai Conditicn and Resulis of Operations,” each included herein.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
{Dollar amounts in thousands,
: except share and per share amounts)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehiensive Income (Loss):
Revenues “ i
Advertising, net $ 10,502 5 11435 % 14472 % 19,221 21,337
Circulation . . 5913 6,038 6,346 6,530 6,767
Advertising service fees-and other 2,103 2,800 3,012 3,205 3,428
Licensing and maintengnce fees 13,984 12,987 5,942 2,205 2,167
Consulting fecs _ 4,704 4,002 3,406 713 814
Other public service fees - 6,170 6,161 498 — -
B 43,978 43,423 37,676 31,874 34,513
Costs and expetises o
Salaries and employee hengfits. . . . 26,010 25,202 19,236 13,592 13473
Outside services me 3,524 3,212 3,086 2,956 3,168
Postage and delivery costs 1,318 1,281 1,328 1,375 1437
Newsprint and printing expenses - 1,225 1,221 1,307 1,321 1,382
Depreciation and amortization . : 5,531 5,516 2,441 503 533
Other general and administrative expenses 9,882 9121 6,489 3445 3,716
’ ' : 47490 45,613 33,887 23,192 23,711
{Loss) incoms from operations (3,512) (2,190) 3,789 8,682 10,802
Other income and expenses
Dividends and interest {iicoms 3,829 3,001 2,541 1967 1,233
Otherimeome &5 97 54 —— i
Interest expenses on margin loans {224) (230} 97 —n -
Intersst and penalty (expense) expense reversal accrued 7
foruncertain and unrecognized tax benefits (56) (537} -— 100 (36)
(ains on sales of capital assets 4 - 1 7 ]
Other-than temporary impairment losses on investment {376) — (1,719) (2,855} e
Income (loss) before taxes (310) 14§ 4,569 7.901 12,000
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 1,120 490 (750) .. (2,360} {4,160}
Net income ) ) 310 § 631 § 3779 3% 5,541 7,840
Weighted average number of common shares cutstanding
—~hasic and diluted 1,380,746 1,380,746 1,380,746 1,380,746 1,380,746
Basic and diluted net income per share 3 059 § 046 § 274 % 4,01 - 568
Comprehensive
MNet income 3 810 % 631 % 3779 8 5,541 7,840
Net change in unrealized apprsciation of investments
{net of taxes) {8,811) 22,393 21,292 15,085 {3,627)
Reclassification adjustment of other-than-{emporary
impaimment losses recognized in net income 230 — 1,051 1,720 —
Net change in comprehensive income (loss) s (7,771) § 23,024 % 26,122 % 22,346 4213
September 30
: 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data;

Total assets $ 228,196 % 243,877 % 203,063 % 120,964 90,816
Sharehalders’ equity 123,600 136,371 113,347 87,225 64,879
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Ttem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finaneial Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operafions

The Company conttnues to operate as two different businesses: (1) The Traditionat Business, being the business of newspaper publishing and
related services that the Company had before 1999 when it purchased a majority interest in Sustain, and (2) Joumai Technologies, Inc, (“Journal
Technologies™), a whoily-owned subsidiary, which includes as of October 1, 2014, the combined operations of Sustain Technolegies, Inc.
(“Sustain”), 2 wholly-owned subsidiary since 2008; New Dawn Technologies, Inc, {(*New Dawn™), acquired in December 2012; and ISD
Technologies, Inc. (“ISD”), acquired in September 2013, Joumat Technologies supplies case management software systerns and related products
to courts, proseeutor and public defender offices, probation dsperiments and other justice agencies, including administrative law organizations,
city and county govemments and bar assoclations. These organizations use the Tournal Technologies family of products to help manage cases and
informetion electronically; to tterface with other oritical justice partners and to extend elscironic services to bar members and the publie,
including a website to pay traffic citations onlins, These products are licensed to more than 500 organizations in 41 states and interationally,

Fiscal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014 -

Overall Resu[t.s}

During fiscal 2015, consolidated pretax loss was $310,000 as compared to a profit of $141,000 {n the prior year. The Traditiona! Business
* segtment’s pretax income decreased by $2,037,000 (65%) to $1,082,000 Fom $3,119,000, primarily resulting from decreases in trustee sale notice
and related service fee revénues of $881,000, commercial advertising revenues of $237,000 and cireulation revenues of $123,000, and increased
expenses of §884,000 primarily for increased personnel costs and legal, accounting and tax fees, Joumal Technologies’ business segment pretax
loss decreased by $1,156,000. (20%) to $4,690,000 from §35,846,000 primarily resulting from increased licensing and maintenance fses and
consulting fees of $1,699,000 (10%), partially offset by increased personnel costs of $524,000, The Company’s non-operating income, net of
expenses, increased by $430,000 (15%) to $3,298,000 primatily because of additionat dividends and- interest income fom: the- Company's
marketable seciitities. There were pretax other than lemporary impairment losses on investments of $376,000 in fiscal 2015 and none in fiscal
2014,

2t

https:ifwww.sec.gov/Archivesiedgar/dala/763412/00014 377491 5022202/djco20150927 10k him 22166




92112016 L djoe20150827_i0k.him

Additional detail about each of the Company’s reportable segments, and its corporate income and expenses, is sef forih below:

A Overs!l Financial Results (000)
For the twelve mornths ended September 30

] Reportable Segments
- Traditional Journal Corporate
© - Business Technologies income and expenses Total
2015 - 2014 - 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revennes ' _
Advertising - ‘$ 10502 $ 11435 § - 8 — & — % — § 10,502 § 11435
Circulation 5,813 6,038 - — uem - 3,915 6,038
Advertising service fees ‘ -
and other - Co2,703 2,800 — — o 2,703 2,800
Licensing and L 7
maintenance fees ) -— - 13,984 12,987 — — 13,984 12,587
Consulting fees B e — 4,704 4,002 - -~ 4,704 4,002
Other public service fees - —m — 6,170 6,161 - o 6,170 6,161
Total revenues 218,120 20,273 24,858 23,150 e —— 43,978 43423
Expenses - ' ‘
Selaries and employee L : ]
benefits s 9,750 9,526 16,250 15,736 -- S — 26,010 25,262
Amortization ofintangible o )
assets S -12 — 4,895 4,866 e T 4,907 4,866
(thers . 8276 7,628 8,297 7,857 — — 16,573 15,488
Total operating - .
expenses " 18,038 17,154 29,452 28,459 — -— 47,490 45613
Income (loss) fiom ' . :
operations 1,082 3,119 (4,594) (5,309) — — (3,512) (2,190

Othier ingomme- (et primeantly-

dividends and interest : .

income ' - — - - 3,674 2,868 3,674 2.868
Other-than-temporary ' '

impaiment Losses on

investments . - — — — (376} - (376} —
Interest and penalty expenses

accrued foruncertain and

unrecognized tax benefits —_— - {96) {537 — -~ (96) (537)
Pretax income (foss) $ 1,082 § 3119 §  (4,690) §  (5846) X 3,298 § 2,268 § (310) 3 141

AF September 30, 2015, the aggregate fair market valus of the Company’s matketable securities was $166,041,000, These securities had
approximately $111,498,000 of unrealized gains before taxes of $43,278,000 and generated approximately $3,829,000 in dividends and interost
income during the year, which lowers the Company s effective income tax rate because of the dividends reeeived deduction.

Consolidated revenues were $43,978,000 and $43,423,000 for fiseal 2015 and 2014, respectively. This increase of $553,000 (1%) was
primarily from additional Joumal Technologies licensing and maintenance and consuliing revenues of $1,699,000, patiially offset by the
reduction in The Traditional Business's trustee sale notice and related service fee revenues of $881,000, commercial advertising revenues of
$237,000 and circulation revenues of $123,000, The Company’s revenuss derived from Journa! Technologies’ operations constituted about 57%
and 53% of the Company’s total revenues for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Consolidated operafing costs and expensés inoreased by $1,877,000 (4%) to $47,490,000 from $45,613,000, primarily resulting from
additional expenses for Joumal Technologics, Total persormel costs increased by $748,600 (3%) to $26,010,000 from $25,262,000 including
additional personne! costs for Journal Technelegies of $524,000, Other general and administrative expenses increased by §761 (8%) to $9,382
from $9,121 mainly because of increased traveol for installation ssrvices and seiling expenses.
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Thete was nst income per share 0f $0.59 for fiscal 2015 as compared with $0.46 per share in the prier year
The Dagitional Business

The Tradifional Business segment advertising revenues, which declined by $933,000 (8%) to $10,502,000 from $11,435,000, ere very much
dependent on the number of California and Arizona foreclosures for which public notice advertising is required by law. The number of foreclesurs
notices published by the Company decreased by 21% during fscal 2015 as compared to the prior year and accounted for almost ail of the decline
in revenues. Because this slowing is expgoted to continue, there will be fewer foreclosure notice advertisements and declining revenues in fiscal
2016, and the Company’s print-based eamings will also likely decline significantly because it will be impractical for the Company to offset all
revenue loss by expense reduction, The Company's smaller newspapers, those other than the Los Angeles and San Francisco Daily Joumals ("The
Daily Joumais"), accounted for about 92% of the total public notice advertising revenues in fiscal 2015, Public notice advertising revenues and
related advertising and other service fees-constituted about 2295 and 24% of the Company's total revenues for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respactively,
Because of this concentration, the Company’s revenues would be significantly affected if Califoria (and to a lesser exlent Arizona) eliminatéed
the legal requirement to publish public notices in adjudicated newspapers of general circulation, as has been proposed from time to time, Also, if
the adjudication of one or more of the Company’s newspapers was challenged and revoked, those newspapers woutd no longer be eligible to
publish public notice advertising, and it could have = material adverse effect an the Company’s revenues. Commercial advertising revenues
decreased by $237,000 (6%) to 3,611,000 from $3,848,000 because of the continuing challenges in the commercial advertising business.

The Daily Joumals accounted for about 87% of the Company's fotal circulation revenues, which declined by $123,000 (2%) to $5,915,000
from $6,038,000. The couit rule end judicial profile services generated about 10% of the total circutation revenues, with the other newspapers and
services accounting for the balance, Advertising service foes and other are Traditional Business segment revenues, which include primarily ()
agency commissions received from outside newspapets in which the advertising is placed and (i) foes generated when filing notices with
govemment sgencies. .t - )

The Traditional Businé;s segment operating expenses increased by $884,000 (5%) to $18,038,000 from $17,154,000 primarily due fo
inereased personinel costy of'$224,000 and-additionat tegal, acoounting amd-tax fees of $38°7,000

Journal Technologies

Joumal Technologies’ revenues increased by §1,708,000 (7%) to $24 858,000 from $23,150,000 in the prior year Licensing and maintenance
feus inerensed:- By 39975000 (8%)t0.513,984,000. 8200812 387,000, Cansulting fees.increased by §702,000¢ (18%) to §4,704,000 from $4,002,000.
In most cases, fevenues fom new installation projects will only be recognized, if at alt, upon completion and acceptance of the services by the
various customers. Deferred tevenues on installation contracts primarily represent the fair value of advances from customers of Joumal
Technologies for software licenses and installation services. After a customer's acoeptancs of the completed project, the advances are generally no
longer at risk of refund and are therefore considered samed. Deferred revenues on license and maintenance contracts represent prepayments of
antual fieense snd maintenance fees and are recognized ratably over the maintenance period.
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Jouma! Technologies' operating expenses, which included the amortization of intangible assets of $4,895,000 and $4,866,000 in fiscal 2015
and 2014, respectively, increased by $993,000 (3%) te $29,452,000 from 528,459,000 primarily due to increased persennel costs of $524,000 and
travel expenses of $576,000, Identifiable intangible assets, including customer relationships and developed technology, are being amortized on a
straight-ine basis over five yeats due ‘to the short life cycle of technology that custome felationships depend ‘on and over 15 years for fax
purposes. Goodwill, which is-not amortized for financial statement purposes, is amortized over a 15-year petiod for tax purposes, Goodwill
represents the expected synergies in expanding the Company’s software business. Goodwill is evaluated for impainnent annually, or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable. Considered factors for potential goodwill impairment
evaluation inchyde the cument year's business profitability before intangible amortization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the market place,
the status of installation contracts and new business, among other things, The Company is continuing to update and upgrade its soflware
products, These costs are exponsed as incurred and will impact eamings at least through the foresesable future,

Taxes

The Company recorded an ingome tax benefit of $1,120,000 on protax loss of $310,000 in fiscal 2015, The effective fax rate was lower than
the statutory rate primarily due fo the dividends received deduction, the domestic production activity deduction and a discrefe benefit of
approximately $400,000 related to the Califomia Enterprise Zone hiring credits which resulted fom the Company’s filing amended Califomia tax
returns for fiscal 2010 through fiscal 2013, A benefit of this tax credit was recognized in the fiscal 2014 amended {ax retum, On pretax income of
$141,000 for fiscal 2014, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $490,000. The Company’s effective tax rate was 36 1% and -348% for fiscal 2015

and 2014, respectively.

‘At September 30, 2013, the Company had an accred liability of approximately $2,951,000 for unceriain and unrecognized tax benefits
relating to an aoquisition in figéal 2013, after a reduction of §252,000 resulting fom the recognition of defemed revenues and from the
amortization of goodwill for tax purposes. The Company does not anticipate a significant inerease ot deorease in this liability in the next twelve
months, If recognized, it is expected that these unrecognized tax benefits would not have a significant impact on the Company’s effective tax
rate. At September 30, 2014, the Company evaluated a tax position taken on its prior year tax rotum and determined that the position did not
meet the more likely tharr noteriterta because that position taken was in contraty 1o (he one-accounted for in purchase accounting. The Company
thus acerued a liability of approzimately $3,244,000 for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2014, Thers was no such an
acenial in fiscal 2013,

During fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, interest sxpense of approximately $96,000, $537,000 and 30, respectively, was recorded as “interest and
penalty: expense accmed.-for. uncertain.and, ynrecognized.tax. henefis’) in the. conselidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). The
Company files federal income tax-returns in the United States and with various state jurisdictions and {s no longer subject to examinations for
fiscal years before fiscal 2012 with regard to federal income taxes and fiscal 2011 for state income taxes,
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Fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013

During fiscal 2014, consolidated pretax income decreased by $4,428,000 (97%) to $141,000 fom $4,569,000 in the prier year, The
Traditional Business segmient’s pretax” income décreased by ‘$4;855,000 {61%) ‘to '$3,119,000 ‘From $7,974,000, primarily “resulting -from -a
reduetion in trustee sale notice and related ssrviee foe revenues of $2,823,000 and commercial advertising revenues of $423,000. Dividends and
interest income increased by $460,000, There were pretax other than temporary impairment josses on investments of $1,719,000 in fiscal 2013 but
none in fiseal 2014, Joumal Technolagies’ business segment pretax Joss increased by $1,611,000 (39%) primarily because of the two acquisitions
as further disoussed below. (Jouinal Technologles included 12 wonths of operatians for Sustain, New Dawn and ISD in fiscal 2014, and 12

months for Sustain, less than 10 months for New Dawn and 1 month for ISD in fiscal 2013.)

Consolidated revennes were $43,423,000 and $37,676,000 for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively, This increase of $5,747,000 (15%) was
primarily from the additional Joumal Technologies® revenues of $9,304,000, partially offsei by the reduction in trustee sale notice and related
service fee Tovenues of $2,825,000 and commercial advertising revenues of $423,000. The Company's revenues derived from Journal
Technologies’ operations constituted about 53% and 37% of the Company’s totsl revenues for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Consolidated cperating costs ‘and expenses increased by $11,726,000 (35%) to $45,613,000 from $33,887,000, primarily for Journal
Technologies, Total personnel costs increased by $6,026,000 (31%) to $25,262,000 from $19,236,000 including additional personnel costs for
Journal Technologies of $4,645,000 and & reduced decrease of $1,740,000 in the expenses rolated to the Company’s Management Incentive Plan
(“Incentive Plan’). The reduced decrsase in Incentive Plan expense consisted of g reduction of $840,000 in the long-term Incentive Plan accrual
during fiscal 2014 due to reduced estimated current and futurs consolidated pretax income before this accrual versus a reduction of $2,580,000 in
the prior compaiable year, This reduiction occumed because the Incentive Plan is based primarily on the pretax income of the Company before
adjustment foreertain itemis Depreciation and amortization costs increased by 33,075,000 {126%) to $5,516,000 mainly resulting from the
additional amortization of Jouenal- Technologies’ intangible costs of $3,601,000. Other general and adminisirative expenses alsc increased by
$2,632,000 (41%) primarily resulting fom additional rent, sales and marketing expenses for Joumal Technologies and increased professional fees,

including those associated with the acquisitions of New Dawn and ISD described below and the fiscal 2013 audit,

The Traditional Business segment advertising revenues declined by $3,037,000 (21%) to $11,435,000 from %14,472,000, The number cf
foreclosure notices published by the Company decressed by 51% during fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, The Company's smaller
newspapers, those other than the Los Angeles and San Francisco Daily Joumals ("The Daily Journals¥), accounted for sbout 96% of the total
public notice advertising reyenues in fscal 2014. Public notice advertising revenues and related advertising and other service fees constituted
abot: 2‘,4&%:&&th&ﬂqmpmy?m{ammﬁmuﬁ&.m-ﬁﬁaL.ZQLA.. Cotmmercial advertiging revenues, declined by $423,000 (10%) to $3,848,000 from
$4,271,000. ’ o -

The Daily Joumals acco;_mtéd for about 86% of the Company's total circulation revenues, which declined by $308,000 (5%} fo $6,038,000
from $6,346,000, The court rule and judictal profile services generated about 11% of the total circulation revenues, with the other newspapers and
services accounting for the balance.
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The Traditional Business seginent operating costs and expenses increased by $1,298,000 (8%) to $17,154,000 from $15,856,000 primarily
due ta annual salary adjustments and a reduced decrease ¢f$1,740,000 in expenses related to the Incentive Plan.

Journal ‘Technologies' revenies increased by $9,304,000 {(67%) to $23,150,000 from $13,846,000 in the prior year, primarily due to the
acquisitions of New Dawn and ISTY, Licensing and maintenance fees increased by $3,045,000 (31%) to $12,987,000 fiom $9,942,000, Consulting
foes increased by $596,000 (17%) to $4,002,00C from $3,406,000. Other public service fees increased by $5,663,000 from $498,000 (1 month
only as ISD wasacquirsd in Séptember 2013 and accounts for most of these fees) 16 $6,161,000. .

Joumal Technologies’ opcrétin-g éxpenses inersased by $10,428,000 (38%) to $28,459,000 from $18,031,000 in the prior year piimarily due
to the two acquisitions, and included an increass in the amortization costs 0£$3,001,000, :

The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $490,000 on pretax ingome of $141,000 in fiscal 2014, The income tax benefit was higher
than the amount computed using the statutory rate because of the dividends received deduction and the domestic production activity deduction,
On pretax income of $4,569,000 for fscal 20 13, the Company rscorded a tax provision of $790,000 which was lower than the amount computed
using the statutory Tate primarily because of the dividends received deduction and the domestic production activity deduction, The Company's
effective tax rate was -348% and 17% for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

At September 30, 2014, the Company accrued a liability of approximately $3,244,000 for uncertain and umecognized tax benefits relating to
an acquisition in fiscal 2013, This was a result of the Company's evaluation of the tax position taken in its prior year tax retum resulting in the
conclusion that the tax position did not meet more likely than not criteria, The prior year’s income tax retum which was filed in July 2014
reflected an income tax position contrary to the one accounted for in purchase accounting in fiscal 2013, Interest and penalties of approximately
$537,000 were j;ecorded as “niteresf #hd penalty expense accrued for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits” in the statement of comprehensive

income,

Al September 30, 2013 énd 2.0_1_2, thers were no ﬁnrccognized tax benefits for the uncertain tax positions as the Company seftled the
previously claimed research and development credits ir its tax retums-for the fscal 2002 te 2007 years with the Internal Revenue Service in

March 2012, - .

Net income per share decreased to $0.46 fiom $2.74.

FEEEER KKK KRB
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Comprehensive income (loss) ineludes net income and uarealized net (losses) gains on investments, net of taxes, as summarized below:

Comprehensive (Loss) Income v o e
Fiscal Year Ended September 30

2015 2014 2013
Net income $ 810,000 3% 631,000 % 3,779,000
Net {decrease) increase in unrealized appreciation of investments {net of taxes) (8,811,000} 22,393,000 21,292,000
Reclassification adjustment of other-than-temporary impairment losses
: 230,000 --- 1,051,600

recognized in net income (net of taxes)
§ (7,771,000 § 23,024,000 § 26,122,000
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The Cbmpan_y’s Traditional Business is one reportable segment and the other is Journal Technologies. Additional detail

about each of the reportable segmeh;s is set forth below:

© Reporiable Segmeits

Reportable Segments

Corporate
Traditional Joymal income
Business Technologies  and sxpenses Total
Fiscal 2015
Revenues
Advertising, net § 10,502,000 § — % — % 10,502,000
Circulation 5,915,000 — 5915000
Advertising service fees and other 2,703,000 - — 2,703,000
Licensing and maintenance fees 13,984,000 - 13,984,000
Consulting fees o — 4,704,000 - 4,704,000
Other public service fees - —_ 6,170,000 — 6,170,000
Operating expenses 18,038,000 29.452,000 —— 47,490,000
Tncome (foss) from operations - 1,082,000 (4,554,000) — (3,512,000}
Dividends and intorest income. — - 3,829,000 3,829,000
Other income and capital gains . .. - ~— 69,000 69,000
Interest exjgense on margnlodns. - (224,000 (224,000)
Interest expense acered foruncertain and wnrecognized tax benefits -— (96,000) — {56,000)
Other-than“temporary impairment losses on investments -— - (376,000) (376,000)
Pretax inpome (loss) 1,082,000 (4,690,000 3,298,000 (310,000)
Income tax benefft (expense) {70,000) 1,580,000 (390,0060) 1,120,000
Net mcome (loss) : 1,012,000 (3,110,000) 2,908,000 810,000
Total assets . 15,047,000 47,108,000 166,041,000 228,196,000
Capital expenditures 425,000 140,000 - 565,000
Amortization of intangible assels 12,000 4,895,000 - 4,907,000
Reportable Segments
. Corporate
Traditionat Joumal income
Business Technologies  and expenses Total
Fiscal 2014
Revenues
Advertising, net § 11435000 § we B - § 11,435,000
Cireulation 6,038,000 - -— 6,038,000
Advertising service fees and other 2,800,000 e — 2,800,000
Licensing and maintenance fees — 12,987,000 e 12,987,000
Consulting fees C - 4,002,000 - 4,002,000
Other public service fess - 6,161,000 — 6,161,000
Operating expenses 17,154,000 28,459,000 —_ 45,613,000
Income (loss) from operations - 3,119,000 (5,309,000) {2,190,000)
Dividends and intersst income — —_ 3,001,000 3,001,000
Other income and capital gains — - 97,000 97,000
Interest expenses — - {230,000} {230,000)
Interest cxpense aceried foruncertain and untecognized tax benefits - (537,000) — {537,000)
Pretax income (Joss) 3,119,000 (5,846,000} 2,868,000 141,000
Income tax benefit (expense) (1,460,000} 2,350,000 {400,600) 490,000
Net income (loss) 1,659,000 (3496,000) 2,468,000 631,000
Total assets 18,228,000 51,973,000 173,676,000 243,877,000
Capital expenditures 110,000 325,000 wm 435,000
Amortization of intangible assets - 4,866,000 — 4,866,000
28
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Fiscal 2013%
Revenues
Advertising, net
Circulation

Advertising service fees and other
Licensing and maintenance fees

Consulfing fees

Other public service fees

Operating cxpenses

Income (loss) from operations
Dividends and interest income
Other income and capital gains

Interest expenses

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments

Pretax income {loss)

Income tax benefit (experise)

Net ingome {loss)
Total assets
~ Capital expenditures

Amortization of intangible assets

djco20160827_10K.him

Reportable Segments
Corporate
Traditional Joumal incoime
“Business Technologies*  and expenses Total: -

3 14,472,000
6,346,000
3,012,000

15,856,000
7,974,000

7,974,000

(3,301,000)

4,673,000
18,458,000
96,000

9,542,000
3,406,000
498,000
18,031,000
(4,185,000)

(4,185,000}
2,263,000
{1,922,000)
47,611,000 .

184,000
1,865,000

2,541,000
55,000
(97,000}
(1,719,000
780,000
248,000
1,028,000
136,994,000

$ 14472000
6,346,000
3,012,000
9,942,000
3,406,000

498,000
33,887,000
3,789,000
2,541,000
54,000
(57,000
(1,719,000)
4,569,000
(790,000)
3,779,000
203,063,000
280,000
1,865,000

* Inc[udes.(i) New Dawn’s fihancial results fom December 5, 2012 througlh September38, 2013 with revenues of §10,403,000 and expenses-
of$10,625,000 (including intangible amortization expenses 0£$1,587,000), and (i) 1SLYs September 2013 financial results with revenues
of $784,000 and expenses of $694,000 (including intangible amortization expenses of $278,000).

9.
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Diselosure of Contraciual Obligations
" The following table sets forth certain contractual p_bli gati_gns as of September 30, 20L5;

Centractual Obligations (000)

Less than More than
o 1 year 1-3 years 35 years 5 years Total
Obligations under operating leases 3 629 % 179 % 319 ¥ — % 1,727
Long-term accrued liabilities* - — i5 - 32 47
3 629§ 794§ 319 % 32 % 1,774

* The long-term accrued liabilities are discounted to the present value using a discount rate 0T 6%.

In addition, during fiseal 2013 the Company bowowed $29,493,000 from its investment margin account for the acquisitions of New Dawn
and ISD. These investment margin account borrowings do not matuze, The interest rate for these investment margin account bowowings fluctuates
based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis polnts with interest only payable monthly, The interest rate as of September 30, 2015 was 0.75%,
and there has been no fluctaation in the interest rate since December 2012, The Company aiso accrued a lability of approximately §2,521,000 for
unecertain and wnrecognized tax benefits relating to one of the acquisitions in fiscal 2013.

Liquidity and C:'.apital Resourees’

During fiscal 2015, the'Company's cash and cash equivalents and markstable security positions decreased by $7,428,000 to $181,658,000,
After selling mérketable securities for §4,044,000 and realizing a pretax gain of approximately $4,000, cash and cash equivalents were used
primarily for the purchase of other marketable securities of $10,977,000 and capital assets, including computer software and office equipment of
about $565,000. The investments in marketable securities, which had an adjusted cost basis of approximately $54,543,000 and had a market
value of about $166,041,000. at September 30, 2015, generated approximately §3.879,000 in dividends and" interest income; which-lowers the:
Company's effective income tax rate bocause of the dividends received deduction. As of September 30, 2015, there were unrealized investment
pretax gains of $111,498,000 as conpared fo $125,700,000 as of September 30, 2014, Most of the unrealized gains were in the common stocks of
three 1.8, finaneial instimtions,

The cash provided By -operating- gotivitfes: af-57; 255008 meuded: decreases- im-defemeds instaliation: contraets,, defered. maintenanse..
agreements and others and deferred subscriptions of $932,000. Cash fiows from operating activities increased by §3,248,000 during fiscal 2015 as
compared to the prior year primarily because of decreases in aceounts receivable of $5,145,000 resulting from more collections, partially offset by
increases in accrued liabilities of $1,015,000,

As of September 30, 2015, the Company had working capital of $122,947,000, including the lizbilities for deferred subscriptions and
deferred ingtallation contracts and defered maintenance agresments and others of $18,109,000, which are scheduled to be earned within one year,
and the deforred tax liability of $43,278,000 for the unrealized gains desoribed above.

The Company believes that it will be able to fand its operations for the foreseesble future through its cash flows flom operating activitics and
its current working capital and expects that any such cash flows will be invested in its businesses. The Company may or may not have the ability
to borrow against its marketable securities on favorable terms-as it did for pricr acquisitions. The Company also may entertain additional business
acquisition opportunities. Any excess cash flows could be used to reducs the investment margin account liability or invested as managsment and
the Board of Ditectors deem appropiiate at the time,
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Such investments may include additional securities of the companiss in which the Company has alweady invested, securities of other
companies, government securities (inchiding U.8, Treasury Notes and Bills) or other instraments, The decision as to particular investments wiil be
driven by the Company’s belief about the risk/teward profile of the varicus investment choices at the time, and it may utilize govemnment
sebrhtlor as's dealt i aitraciive opporhunities for a better ieturh are not available."The Compaiy’s Chainnan of the Board, Charles Munger, is
also the vice chairman of Berkshire Hathaway me., which maintaing a subsiantial investment portfolio, The Company’s Board of Directars has
utilized his judgment and suggestions, as well as those of JF, Guerin, the Company’s vice chaiman, when selecting investments, and both of
them will continne to play an impdttant role in monitoring existing investments and selecting any future investments,

As of September 30, 2015, the investments were concentrated in just seven companies, Accordingly, a significant decline in the market value
of one or more of the Company's investments may not be offset by the hypothetically better performance of other invesiments, and that couid
result in a large decrease in the Company’s shareholders' equity and, under certain circumstances, in the recognition of impairment losses in the
Compaty’s income staterment (such as the other-than-tsmporary impaimment losses of $376,000 recognized during this year, $1,719,000
Tecognized in fiscal 2013 and §2,855,000 recognized in fiscal 2012).

Critieal Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company's financial statements and accompanying notes arc prepared in accordance with U5, generally accepted accounting principles.
Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, ligbilities,
revennes and expenses. These gstimates and assumptions are affecied by management's application of accounting policies. Management believes
that revenue recognition, accounting for software costs, fair value measurement and disclosures (including for the long-term Incentive Plan
liabilities), accounting for business combinations, testing for goodwil! impairment and income taxes are critical accounting policles and
estimates, .l

For the Tmditional Business, proceeds-from the sale of subscriptions for newspapers, count rule books and other publications and other
services are recorded as deferred revenue and are included in eamed revenue only when the services are provided, generally over the sybscription
term, Advertising revenues are recognized when advsrtisements-are published and arenetof commissions. An allowancefor doubiful aceounts.for
receivable i3 recorded. ' : : :

Journal Technologies recognizes revenues in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (*fASC”) ASC 985-605,
Sofiware—Revenue Recognition and ASC 605-35 Construction-Tope and Production-Tipe Coniracts. Revenues fiom feases of software
pmducbwwmagmizedswemhwkifm;mﬁxbﬁziease;whik&mvemmﬁmmnmﬁmampmdmt.sala&ﬁm; generally, recognized upoa delivery, installation
or acceptance pursuant to a signed dgreement. Revenues #om annual license and malntenance agreements generally call for the Company to
provide software updates and upgrades te custorners and are recognizad ratably over the maintenance period. Consulting and other services are
recognized upon acceptance by the customers under the completed contract method, The Company elects to uss the completed contract method
hecause each customer’s acceptance is unpredictable and reliable estimates of tho progress towards completion cannot be made. Only afier a
customer’s acceptance of & completed project are customer advences generally no longer at risk of refund and are therefore considered earned,
Other public service fkes, as disclosed in the consclidated siatements of comprehensive income (loss), are primarily service fees samed and
recognized as tevenues at the time when the Company processes credit card payments on behalf of the courts via its ePaylt sscure websites
through which the general public can pay traffic citations and obfain traffic school information.
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The Company has established Vendor Specific Objective Bvidence (VSOE) of the fair value of annual maintenance because a substantial
majority of Joumal Technologies® actual maintenance renewals is within a nanow range of pricing as a percentage of the underlying license fees
for the logay contracts and is deemcd substantive,

ASC 98520, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed, provides that costs related to the
research and development of a new software product are to be expensed as incurred until the technological feasibility of the product is
established. Accordingly, costs related to the development of new software products are expensed as incuived until technological feasibility has
been established, at which time such cdsts are capitalized, subject to expected recoverability, In general, “technological feasibility” is achieved
when the developer has established the necessary skills, hardware and technology to produce a produet and a detailed program design has been (i)
completed, (1} traced to the product specifications and (iii) reviewed for high-risk development issues, The Company believes its process for
developing software is essentially completed concurrsnt with the establishment of technological feasibility, and accordingly, no software
development costs have been capitalized to date.

ASC 820, Fair Value Meéasurement and Disclosures, requires the Company to (i) disclose the amounts of transfers in and out of Level I and
Level 2 fair value measurements and the reasons for the trensfers and (1i} present separately information about purchases, sales, issuances and
settlements in the reconciliation of Level 3 measurements. This guidance also provides clarification of existing disclosures requiring the
Company to defermine sach class of its investments based on 1isk and to disclose the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value
for both Level 2 and Level 3 measurements, The Company made no fransfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 measurements in fiscal years 2012,
2013 and 2014, During that time all of the Company’s investments have been quoted on public markets and, therefore, all fair value caloulations
have been based on Level.] measuroments, The estimated Incentive Plan’s fature commitment is caloulated vsing Level 3 inputs, as defined in the
fair value hierarchy, based on an average of the current year and the current expsctation of fiscal 2015 pretax eamings before certain items,
discounted to the presenh{‘z:ﬁué 4! 8% since’each granted Inceniive Plan Unit will expire aver its remaining life term ofup to 10 years,

ASC 805, Business Combinations, requires the use of the purchase msthod of accounting in connection with the acquisition of businesses,
This requires all of the acquired assets and liabilities to be recorded at their fair values and for the purchase price to be allocated accordingly.
Furthermore, itangible assets must be categorized and separated-intc two' groups:-those-with an identifiable remaining useful life and those.with
an indefinite useful life, The latter is-classified as goodwill, In figeal 2013, the acquisitions of New Dawn and ISD resulted in the Company
allocating $13,400,000 to goodwill. The identifiable intangible assets acquired for New Dawn and ISD were based on Level 3 fair value
measurements using an income approach discounted to the present value,
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The Company analyzes goodwill -for possible tmpairment under ASC 350, futangibles ~ Goodwill and Other, annually or whenever events or
changes in circamstances indicate that the value may not be recoverable, Considered factors for potential goodwill impairment evaluation for the
reporting units include current yeai’s business profitability before intangible amortization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the marke! place,
the status of installation contracts and new business, among other things. In addition, ASC 2011208, Testirig Goodwill for Impairment, allows for
the option of performing a qualitative assessment before caleulating the fair value of a reporting unit, If it is determined based on qualitative
factors that thers is no impairment to' goodwill, then the fair value of a reporting unit is not needed. If a quantitative analysis is required and the
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value, then the second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment, The Company's
anmual goodwill impairment analysis in 2014 did not result in an impairment charge based on the qualitative assessment using the above-

meniioned considered factors for patential goodwill impairment,

ASC 740, Income Taxes, establishes financial accounting and reporting standerds for the effect of income taxes, The objectives of accounting
for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and the deferred tax Habilities and assets for the
futore tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax returns. This accounting guidance &lsc prescribes
recognition thresholds and measurement attributes for the financial statements recognition and measurement of a fax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s
financial statements or tax returns. Fluctuations in the actual outcome of these fiture tax consequences could materially impact the Company’s
financial position or ils results-of operations and its deferred tax liabilities related to the net ynrealized gains on investments. See Note 3 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion,

ASC 280-‘._1:}0, Segn ert.tR"epm'tfng;‘ defines operating segments as compeonents of a public entity that has diserete financial information that is
evaluated regularly by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer to decide how to allocate resources and to assess performance. In aceordance with
ASC 280-10, the Company has twa repertable business segments which are: (i) Traditional Business and (ii} Journal Technologies,

The above discussion and analysis should be tead in conjunction with the consolidated financial staternents and the notes thereto included in
this report. :
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Item 7A. Qualifative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk

In December 2012, the Company bomowed fom its investment margin account the purchase price of 14 million for the New Dawn
acquisition, and in September 2013,'it borciwed anether $15.5 mitlion for the ISD ‘acquiisition, in each case pledging its marketable securities as
collateral. The interest rate for these investment margin aceount borrowings fluctuates based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points with
interest only payable monthly, ‘The interest rate as of September 30, 2015 was 0,75%, and there has been no fluctuation in the interest rate since

Deeember 2012, The Company was not subject to any significant interest rate risk during such period.

Forelgn Currency Risk

The Company holds foreign marketabls securities based in South Korean Won and Hong Kong Dollar that are subject to rsk associated
with changes in the exchange rates of these swrencies against the United States Dollar, The fair value of the foreign marketable security held in
South Korean Won was $8,694,000, and the adjusted cost was §10,977,000 as of September 30, 2015, The exchange rate of the Sonth Korean
Won against the, United States Dollar was $0.00095 and $0.00084 at October [, 2014 and September 30, 2015, respectively. The fair value of the
foreign matketable security held in Hong Kong Doliar was $26,355,000, and the adjusted cost was $9,697,000 as of September 30, 2015, The
exchange rate of the Hong Kong Dollar against the United States Dollar was $0.12877 and $0.12903 at October 1, 2014 and September 30,2013,

respectively. :
Equity Price Risk

The Compiny owns ;ﬁark,é,table securities and is subject to equity price risk. The following table summarizes our equity securities with
significant equity price risk as:of September30, 2015 and 2014, The effects ofa hypothetical 30% increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as
of those dates are also shown, Tha selected 30% hypothetical changes do not reflect what could be considered the best or worst case scenarios.
Indeed, results could be far better or. worse due both to the nature of equity markets and the aforementioned concentration in our equity

investment portfolio.

Equity Price Risk (000)

Hypothetical
Percentage Increase
Estimated Fair Value (Decrease) in
Hypothetical Price  afer Hypothetical Shareholders”

Fair Valus Change Change in Prices Equity
September 30, 2015 N
Bquity securitics § 158,705 30% increase b 206,317 37% increase
30% decrease 111,054 37% decrease
September 30, 2014
Equity securities 165,734 30%increase 8 215,454  36% increase
30% decrease 116,014 36% decrease
34
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Hem 8. Financ'i:al Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fivm -

The Board ofI_)irecfnrs and Shareholders of Daity Journal Corporation

We have audited the accorﬁpanying consolidated balance sheets of Daily Joumal Corporation as of September 30, 2015 and 2014 and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income {Joss), shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on these financial statements based on cur

audits, -

We conducted our auditsin- aceordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fres of material misstatement.
An audit inchudes cxamining, on a test besis, evidence supporting the smounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting pririciples used and significant estimates made by menagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinjon: the consolidatéd financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Daily
Journal Corpotation at Septefnber 30, 2015 and 2014, and the resulis of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles geicrally acoepted in the United States of America.

We also heve audited, in‘ dccordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Daily Journal
Corporation’s internal control over financial reperiing as of September 30, 2015, based on criteria established in Jnternal Control — Integrated
Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission- {COSE) and our report dated December
14,2015 expressed an adverse opinion therson,

s/ BDO USA, LLFP

Los Angeles, California
December 14,2015
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The Beard of Divecfors and Shar-ehold'ers of Daily Journal Corporafion

Corporatmn For the year endcd September 30,"2013, These financial statements ‘ate the respnnmblhty of the Company's management, Our
respongibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasoneble assuranco about whether the financial statemients aro free of imaterial misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts end disclosures in the financial statements. An sudit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estitnates made by management, as well a5 evaluating the oversll financial statement
presentation, We believe that ouraudit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion‘,':tbe financial statements reforred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results of operations and cash
flows of Daily Joumal Corporation for the year ended September 30, 2013, in conformity with U S. generally accepted accounting principles,

s/ Brnst & Young, LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 24,2014
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30
2015 2014
ASSETS
Current assets . : -
Cash and cash equwa!ents ) - 3 15617000 § 15,410,000
Markotable sscurities, including common stocks of $158,705,000 and bonds of $7,336,000 at
September30, 2015 and common stocks 0f $165,734,000 and bonds of'$7,642,000 at September
30,2014 166,041,000 173,876,000
Accounts receivable, icss allowance for doubtful accounts 6f $250,000 at September 30, 2015 and
2014 - - : 5,673,000 8,566,000
Inventories |, : 48,000 51,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets ) 684,000 583,000
Income tax receivable 4. . - 765,000 2,051,800
Total current assots _ ’ 188,828,000 200,737,000
Property, plant and equipment; at ¢ost -
Land, buildirrgs and improvements . : 12,773,000 12,814,000
Fumiture, office equipment and computer software 2,655,000 2,885,000
Machinery apd equipment - - - 1,864,000 1,864,000
: A 17,292,000 17,567,000
-Less accumulated depreciation (8,335,000) (8,552,000)
8,957,000 9,015,000
Intangibles, net - 12,990,000 17,744,000
Goodwill ) . 13,400,000 13,400,000

Deferred income taxes, net ' 4.021,000 2,981,000
R § 228196000 § 243,877,000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Curment [iabilities

Accounts payable A $ 4,212,000 § 4,344,000
Accrned labilities 2,919,000 3,118,000
Deferred subscriptions 3,474,000 3,381,000
Deferred installation contracts 7,820,000 2,896,000
Deferred maintenance agreetnents and others 6,815,000 7,031,000
Deferred income taxes, net 40,641,000 46,502,000

Total current liabilities 65,881,000 73,272,000

Long term liabilities

Investment margin account borowings _ 29,493,000 25,403,000
Deferred maintenance agreements 551,000 180,000
Income tax payable 2,991,000 3,244,000
Accrued interest and penalty for uncerfain and unrecognized tax bensfity 633,000 537,000
Acerued liabilitics 47,000 780,000

Total long temn liabilities 33,715,000 34,234,000

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4 and 5) — ——

Shareholders' equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized and no shares issued o
Common stock, $.01 parvalue, 5,000,000 shares-authorized; 1,805, 053 shares issued, including

424,307 treasury shares, at September 30, 2015 and 2014 14,000 14,000
Additional paid-in capital ' 1,755,000 1,755,000
Retained camings : o 59,111,000 58,301,000
Accumulated other complehenslve income 67,720,000 76,301,000

Total shareholders' equity 128,600,000 136,371,000

3 228,196,000 3 243,877,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPCORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

2015 2014 2013

Revenues o :
Advertising, net - £ 10,502,000 § 11435000 3 14,472,000
Cireulation : 5,915,000 6,038,000 6,346,000
Advertising service fees and other 2,703,000 2,800,000 3,012,000
Licensing and maintenance fees 13,984,000 12,987,000 9,942,000
Consulting fees T 4,704,000 4,002,000 3,406,000
Cther public service fees 6,170,000 6,161,000 498,000

43,978,000 43,423,000 37,676,000

Costs and expenses i
Salaries and employee benefits | ] 26,010,000 25,262,000 19,236,000
Qutside servi}::es ) 3,524,000 3,212,000 3,086,000
Postage and delivery expenses - - : 1,318,600 1,281,000 1,328,000
Newsprint and printing expenses 1,225,000 1,221,000 1,307,000
Depreciation and amortization 5,531,000 5,516,000 2,441,000
Other general and administrative expenses 9,882,000 9,121,000 6,439,000

. o R . 47,490,000 45,613,000 33,887,000

{Loss) income from operatidns= * - (3,512,000} (2,196,000) 3,789,000

Other income (gxpenses) & - ° ‘

Dividends and inferest income 3,829,000 3,001,000 2,541,000
Other income 65,000 97,000 54,000
Interest expense on margin Joans (224,000} (230,000) (97.800)
Tnterest and penalty expense accrued for uncertain and vnrecognized tax

benefits . _ {96,000) (537,000) -—
Gains on sales of marketable securitics/capital assets : 4,000 — 1,000
Other-than-temporary impairment lossss on investments (376,000) o (1,719,000)

(Loss) income before taxes (310;000% 141,000, 4.569.000.

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 1,120,000 490,000 (790,000}

Wet income b 810,000 3 631,000 % 3,779,000

Weighted average number of gommon shares outstanding - basic and diluted 1,380,746 1,380,746 1,380,746

Basic and diluted net income per share , b - 059 % 046 § 2.74

Comprehensive {loss) income
Net income $ 810,000 $ 631,000 § 3,779,000
Net change in unreatized appreciation of investrents (net of tax benefits of
$5,764,000 for fiscal 2013, net of taxes of $14,286,000 and $13,544,000 for :
fisea! 2014 and 2013, respectively) (8,811,000) T 22,393,000 21,252,000
Reclassification adjustment of other-than-temporary impairment iosses
recognized in net income (nst of taxes of $146,000, $0 and £668,000,

respectively) 230,000 - 1,051,000

$ (7,771,000 3 23,024,000 3§ 26,122,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Balance at September 30,
2012
Net income
Unrealized gain on
investments, net
Reclassification
adjustment of other-
than-temporary
impairment losses
recognized in net

income (net of taxes) -

Balance at September 30,
2013 ’
Net income -
Unrealized gain on
investments, net
Balance at September 30,
2014
Net income
Unrealized losses on
investments, net
Reclassrfication”
adjustment of other-
than-temporary
impatrment losses
recognized in net
income (net of taxes)
Balance at September 30,
2015

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Comtnon Stock Treagury Stock Paid-in Retained ~ Comprehensive Sharcholders'

Share Amount Share Amount Capital Eamnings Income Equity
1,805,053 $ 18,000 (424307) § {4,000) $ 1,755,000 $53,891,000 § 31,565,000 $ 87,225,000
- — ’ - 3,779,000 - 3,779,000
" - — — — - 21,292,000 21,252,000
o - —_— - -— — 1,051,000 1,051,000
. 1,805,053 18,000  (424,307) (4,000) 1,755,000 57,670,000 53,908,000 113,347,000
LT - 631,000 621,000
- — —- — —- -— 22,393,000 22,393,000
1,805,053 18,000  (424,307) (4,000 1,755,000 58,301,000 76,301,000 136,371,000
— - — i — 210,000 - 810,000
e — - - - - (8,811,000} {(8,811,000)
- — — -— -— -~ 230,000 230,000
1,805,053 3 18,000 (424,207) § (4,000) § 1,755,000 §$59,111,000 § 67,720,000 $128,600,000

See accmnpanying Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2015 2014 2013
Cash fiows from operating actlwtles
Net income : 5 310,000 § 631,000 § 3,779,000
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating o
activities - o
Deprematmn and amomzatlon 5,531,000 5,516,000 2,441,000
Gains on sales of markctable seourities (4,000) — -
Deferred income taxes (1,283,000) 2,039,000} (493,000)
Discount eamed on bonds (3,000) (3,000} (2,000)
Other-than-temporary impainment losses on investments 376,000 — 1,719,000
Changes in assets and liabilities
{Increase) decrease in cument assets (net of acquisitions)
Accounts recewable,net 2,893,000 (2,252,000) 1,691,000
Inventories . 3,000 5,000 (13,000}
Prepaid expenses and other assets 299,000 975,000 252,000
Income tax receivable 1,286,000 (1,746,000) {169,000)
Increase {decrease) in habﬂmes (net of acquisitions) -
Accountspayable . .. (132,000) 85,000 (155,000)
Accrued liabilities: - (836,000} (1,851,000) (3,016,000)
Incotne taxes - {253,000) 3,244,000 -
Deferred subscription (11,000} (153,000) {115,000)
Deferred installation contracts (+,076,000) 2,817,000 (593,600)
Deferred maintenance agresients and others 155,000 78,000 286,000
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,755,000 4,507,000 5,672,000
Cash flows from investing activities .
Maturities amd satesofih S Treasuryrﬂ*ﬂ{sc —_ - 800,000
Sales of marketable secutities 4,044,000 e -—
Purchases of marketable securities (10,977,000} — -—
Acquisition of New Dawn Technologies, Inc. (net of cash acquired) - - (11,878,000)
Acquisition of ISD Technologies, Inc. (net of cash acquired} — - {13,454,000)
Acquisition ot The Daily Transcaipt (50,000) - —
Parchases of property, plant and equipment (565,000) {435,000} (280,000)
WNet cash used for investing activities (7,548,000) (435,000} (24,812,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Tnvesiment margin accouit bomowing — — 29,493,000
Net cash provided from financing activities — —~— 26,493,000
Increase in cash and cash eqiivalents’ 207,000 4,072,000 10,353,000
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 15,410,000 11,338,000 585,000
End of year ) $ 15,617,000 § 15,410,000 § 11,338,000
Interest paid during year o o $ 224000 § 230,000 % 97,000
Income taxes (refunded) paid during year . b {959,000) & 28,000 § 1,354,000
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
40
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DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION
NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1, THE COMPANY AND OPERATIONS

Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”) publishes newspapers and web sites covering Califomia and Arizoma, and produces several
specialized information services, It also serves as a newspapet repiesentative specializing in public notice advertising,.

Joumal Technologies, Inc. (“Joumal Technologies™) is the result of the Cctober 1, 2014 merger of the Company’s three technology-related
subsidiaries, which were previously separate companies: Sustain Technologies, Inc, (“Sustain™), a whally owned subsidiary since 2008; New
Dawn Technologies, Inc, (“New Dawn™), acquired in December 2012; and ISD Technologies, Inc, (ISD™), acquired in September 2013. The
merger was concluded in accordance with ASC 805-50-15, Bustness Combinations - Transactions Befween Entities Under Common Control.
Since pushdown accounting had been applied at the time of acquisitions, all assets and liabilities of Sustain and ISD were integrated into Journal

Technologies at their camying bock values,

Joumal Technologies supplies case managerment sofiwate systoms and related products to coutts, prosecutor and public defender offices,
probation departments and other justise agencies, including administrative law organizations, city and county governments and bar associations,
These otpanizations use the Journal Technologics family of products to help manage cases and information electronically, to interface with other
critical justice partners and to extend electronic servioes to bar mesbers and the public, including a website to pay traffic sitations online. These
products are licensed to more thap 500 organizations in 41 states and intemationally.

Essential-[f‘all ofthe ééfﬁi’)ény’s ‘6parafions ere based in Califomia, Arizona and Utak,
2, SUMMARYV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIER

Basis of Presentation; ‘The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and Joumal Technelogies. All
intercompany accounts and transacticns have been eliminated in consclidation.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified te conform to the current year financial statement presentation,

Concentrations of Credif Risk: The Company extends unsecured orecit to most of its advertising customers. The Company recognizes that
extending credit and setting appropriate reserves for receivables is largely a subjective decision based on knowledge of the customer and the
industry. Credit exposure also includes the. amount of sstimated unbilled sales. Credit limits, setting and meintaining credit standards, and
managing the overall quality of the credit portfolio is fargely centralized, The level of credit is influenced by the customer’s credit and payment
history which the Campany monitors when establishing a reserve,

The Company maintains the reserve account for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. If
the financial conditions oFits customers wers to deteriorate or its judgments about their abilities to pay are incomrect, additional allowances might
be required and its results of operations could be materially affected.
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Cash equivalents: The Company considers all highty liquid investinents with insignificant risk of change in value within three months to e
cash equivalents,

Fair Value of Financial Instriments: Thé canying amounts of éash, Accounts receivable and accounts payeble approximate fair value because of
their short maturities. In addition, the Company has investments in marketable securities, all categorized as “available-for-sale” and stated at fair
market value, with the unrealized geins and losses, net of taxes, teported in “Accumulated other comprehensive income™ (AOCI) in the
accompanying consolidated: balance sheets, The wnrealized gains and Josses included in AOCI represent changes in the fair value of the
investments due to changes in both foreign cumency cxchange rates and market prices, The Company uses quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets (consistent with the Level 1. definition in the fair value hierarchy) to measure the fair value of its invesiments on a recumring basis
pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC”) Topic 820, Fuir Value Measurement and Disclosures. At September 30, 2015, the
aggregate fair market value of the Company's marketable securities was $166,041,000. These investments had approximately $111,498,000 of
unrealized gains before taxes of $43,278,000. Most of the unrealized gains were in the common stocks of three U.S. financial [nstitutions, The
bonds have a maturity date in 2035 and are classified as “"Current assets” because they are available forsale. At September 30, 2014, the Company
had marketable securities at fair market value of approximately $173,676,000, incleding approximately $125,700,000 of unreelized gains before
taxes of $48,896,000.

nyestment in Financial Instruments

. September 30, 2015 September 30, 2014
Aggregate  Amortized/Adjusted Pretax Aggregate  Amortized/Adjusted Pretax
fair value ¢ost basis unrealized fair value cost basis unrealized
P gains - gaing
Marketable securities AR .

Common stocks - +-$158,705,000 § 49,604,000 $109,101,000 $165734,000 § 43,042,000 $122,692,000
Bonds 7,336,000 4,939,000 2,397,000 7,942,000 4934000 3,008,000
$166,041,000 § 545470007 § 17T 498,000 $173.676,000 § 47976000 $125706,000

The Company performed separate evaluations for impaired equity securities quarterly to determine if the unrealized losses were other-than-
temporary. This evaluation considered a number of factors including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent {o which the fair value had
been loss than cost, the financial condition and near term: prospects of the issuer and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the securities until
fir value recovers. The assessment of“the ability-and fmtent-to- Troli thieser sovurities tor regovery-focoses o Mguidity needs;. assec/liability-
management and portfolio objectives. As of September 30, 2015, the Company voncluded that the unrealized losses refated to the marketable
securities of one issuer were other-than-terporary and thus recorded jmpaioment losses of $376,000 ($230,000 net of taxes). U8, GAAP requires
that the Company recognize other-than-temporary impairment losses in carnings rather than in accumulated comprehensive income when the
secuity prices remain below cost for a peried of time that may be deemed excessive even in instances where the Company possesses the ability
and intent to hold the seourity, However, the recording of these impairment iosses does not necessanly indicate that the loss in value of these
seourities is permanent, In fiscal 2014, there were no unrealized losses related to the marketable securities.
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Acguisitions:  In Decomber 2012, the Company purchased all of the outstanding stock of New Dawn for $14,000,000 in cash. The results of
aperations of New Dawn from December 5, 2012 through Ssptember 30, 2013 were included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements for fiscaf 2013: revenues were §10,403,000, expenses were $10,625,000 (including intangible smoxtization expenses of §1,587,000),
and its prétax ioas was §222,000, On'September {3, 2013, the Company acquired substatitially all of the operating assels and liabilities of ISD
Corporation for abous $16,000,000 in cash. The results of operations of ISD for the mouth of September 2013 were also inciuded in the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for fiscal 2013: revenues were $784,000, expenses were $694,000 (including intangible
amortization expenses of $278,000), and its pretax income was $90,000. Both acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting in accordance with. ASC B0S, Business Combinations, The Company incurred legal and tax fees of approximately $96,000 for the
New Dawn scquisition and approximately $202,000 for the ISD acquisition during fiscal 2013, These costs were included in *Other general and
administrative expenses” on the Company’s consalidated Statements of Comprehensive Incorme (Loss) in flscal 2013, The Company acquired
New Dawn and ISD fo expand its cass management software business and to broaden its customer base in key markets,

On July 25,2014, the Company finalized its valuation of ISD, which resulted in an allocation of $1,700,000 to goodwill and a reduction of
the same amount in its intangible assels. The Company allocated the 18D purchase price to tangible assets ($4,410,000 including cash of
$2,546,000; accounts receivable of $1,636,000; fxzd assels of$141,000; and prepaid assets of $87,000), identifiable intangible assets (purchased
software and customer relationships of $14,975,000 pursnant to the results of a third party valnation) and liabilities ($5,112,000 including
accounts payable and accryed expenses of §2,270,000 and deferred maintenance agroements of $2,842,000) based on their fair values with the
remaining balance in excess of the net assets allocated to goodwill (3 1,700,000),

Deferred fevenues o -iustallation contracts primarily represent the fair value of advances fom customers of Journal Technologies for
software licenses and installation services, Afier a customer’s acceptance of the completed project, the advances are generally no longer at risk of
refund and ave therefore considered eamed. Deferred revenues on maintenance contracts represent prepayments of annual lcense and maintenance

fees.

The Company has determined that it is impracticabls to provide supp!emental pro forma information regarding the revenucs and eamings of
New Daw andISD asifthe goquisitions rad cecurred on October 1, 2011 because neither New Dawn not[SD. previously maintained its boaks
on an acerual basis in accordance with GAAP, and New Dawn’s and 1SD’s ownexs further operated each of the entities as an S corporation, As a
result, the Company is unable to produce mezningful pro fonma numbers through the use of reasonable efforts. Had the acquisitions ocourred on
October 1, 2011, the Company would have recorded additional interest expenses of $133,000 in 2013, related to the margin account borrowings
incured to fund the acquisitions, and would have recorded additional intangible amortization of $3,370,000 in 2013,
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Inlangible Assets: At September 30, 2015 and 2014, intangible assets were composed of (i) customer relationships of $11,693,000 and
$15,946,000 {net of the accumulated amortization expenses of $10,406,000 and $6,004,000), tespectively, and (ii) developsd technolegy of
$1,292,000 and $1,798,000 (net of accumulated amortization expenses of $1,233,000 and $727,000), respectively, These intangible assets are
being amoitized over five years or less based on théir estimated seful 1ives, Future ‘annual intangible amottization costs are estimatsd to be
approximately $5,037,000 for fiscal 2016, $§4,895,600 for fiscal 2017 and $3,058,000 for fiscal 2018 and none thereafer. Intangible
amortization expense was $4,907,000, $4,866,000 and $1,865,000 for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respeotively,

Intangible Assets
September 30,2015 September 30,2014
Customer Devsloped Customer Developed
Relationships ~ Technology Total Relationships  Technology Total
Gross intangible <3 22,104000 § 2,525,000 § 24,629,000 § 21,950,000 § 2,525,000 § 24475000
Accumulated amortization (10406,000)  (1,233,600) _ (11,639,000) (6,004,000 727,000y - (6,731,000)

T 11,692,000 3 1,292000 § 12,990,000 § 15946000 § 1,798,000 § 17,744,000

Goodwill:-. The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. Goodwill is not
amortized for financial statement purposes bt evaluated for impairment annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value may not be recovetable, The goedwill amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets relates only to Joumal Technologies, The
Company performed qualitative assessments for Joumal Technologies and determined there were no substantive changes durlng the cument year
and 10 indication of impainment: I making this assessment, the Company only considered Journal Technologies™ assets and their revenue
generating abilities as requiréd by ASC 350, Goodwill represents the expected synergies in expanding the Company’s software business,
Considered factors for potential goodwill impairment evaluation for the reporting units include the cument year's business profitability before
intangible amortization, fluctuations of revenues, changes in the market placs, the status of instailation contracts and new business, among other
things, As of Seplember 30, 2015 and 2014, there was goodwill of §13.4C0,000.

Prepaid and Other Assers: Included in other assets are in-progress installation service costs for projects from the acquisition for which
tevenues have not yet been recognized and are deferred.

Tirvemtorfes: nventones ':soﬁiprise@ ‘of newsprint-and:papes; are-siated-at cosh.0n: 2 lrst-in, frst-out.basis, which: does not.exceed. cunsnt..
market value. S -

Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment are carried on the basis of cost or fair value for assets acquired in business
combinations, Depreciation of assets is provided in amounts sufficient to depreciate the cast of related assets over their estimated useful lives
ranging fiom 3 — 39 years. At Septembor 30, 2015, the estimated usoful lives were (i) 5 — 39 vears for building and improvemenis, (i) 3 — 5 years
for fumiture, office equipment and software, and (i) 3 — 10 years for machinery and equipment, Leasehold fmprovemenis are amertized over the
term of the related leases or the useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter. Assots are depreciated using the straight-line method for financial
statements and accelerated method for tax purposes. Depreciation and amortization expenses were $624,000, $650,000 and $576,000 for fiseal
2015,2014 and 2013, respectively.

Stgnificant expenditures which extend the useful lives of existing assets arc capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as
incurred. Gains or losses on dispositions of assets are reflected in cuirent eamings.
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fm;ﬁaz'rmen; of Long-Lived Assets: The Company evaluates long-lived assets for impainnent whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value.of an asset may nol be receverable, There were no such impairments identified during fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013,

Jowrnal Techiiologies® Siftware Dévelopnient Costs: Development costs telated to software products developed for sale or licensing are
expensed as incutred until the technological feasibility of the preduct has been established. Thereafter, until the product is releassd for sale,
software development costs are capitalized and reported at the lower of unamortized cost or net realizable value of the related product, The
establishment of technological feasibility and the ongoing nssessment of recoverability of costs require considerable judgment by the Company
with respect to certain internal and extemnal factors, including, but not limited fo, anficipated future product revenve, estimated economic life and

changes in hardware and software technology.

The Company believes its process for developing software is essentially completed concument with the establishment of technological
feasibility, and accordingly, no software development costs have been capitalized to date.

Revenue Recognition: For the Traditional Business, proceeds fiom the sale of subscriptions for newspapers, court rule books and other
publications and other services are recorded as deforred revenus and are included in eamed revenue only when the services are provided,
generally over the subscription termn. Advertising revenues ars recognized when advertisements are published and are net of commissions, The

change in allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows.

Additions Accounts
Balance at Charged to Charged Ealance
Beginning Costs and offless atEnd

Deseription of Year Expenses Recoveries of Year
2015 i, S

Allowance for doubtful accounts ’ B 250,000 3§ 61,000 § {61,000} 3 250,000
2014 .. _ _

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 250,000 3 41,000 & (41,000) § 250,000
2013 P

Allowance for doubtful accounis $ 200,000 § 144,000 $ {94,000) § 250,000

Joumal Technologies recognizes revenues in accordance with the provisions of’ ASCIRFE0ST Softvare—Revenue Recognition-and A3E
605-35 Construction-Type and Production-fype Contracts. Revenues from annual license and maintenance contracts generally call for the
Cormpany to provide software updates and upgrades fo customers and are recognized ratably over the maintenance period, Consulting and other
services are recognized upon acceptznce by the customers under the completed contrct method. The Company elests to use the completed
contract method because cach customer’s acceptance is unpredictable and reliable estimates of the progress towards completion cannat be made.
Only after a customer s aceeptance of a completed project are customer advances generally no longer at risk of refund and are therefore considered

eamed,

Ofther public service foes, as disclosed in the sonsolidated siatements of comprehensive income (loss), are primarily service fees earned and
secognized as revenues at the time the Company processes credit card payments on behalf of the courts via its ePaylt secure websites through
which the general public uses can pey traffic ¢itations and obtain traffic school information.
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Approximately 57%, 53% and 37% of the Company’s revenues in fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were derived from sales and
leases of software licenses, annual mainlenance agreements and consulting services that typically include implementation and training,

The Company has established Vendor Specific Objective Evidence (VSOE) of fair value of the annual ‘maintenance because & substantial
majority of the Journal Technologies’ actual maintenance renewsls is within a namow range of pricing as a percentage of the underlying Hcense
fees for the legacy contracts:and is desmed substantive,

Management Incentive Plan: In fiscal 1987, the Company implemented a Management Incentive Plan (the "Incentlve Plan™) that entitles a
participant to participate in pretax eamings before adjustment for certain items of the Company, In 2003, the Company modified the Incentive
Plan to pravide participants with three different types of non-negotisble incentive certificates based on the nature of the particular participants’
responsibilities. Each certificate entitles the participant to & specified share of the applicable pretax earnings in the year of grant and to receive the
same percentage of pretax eamings to be generaied in each of the next nine years provided they remain with the Company or are in retirement
afier working for the Company to age 65. Ifa participant dies while any of his or her certificates remain outstanding, future payments under those
centificates will be made o the deceased participant’s beneficiaries,

In fiscal 2015, afler combining Sustain, New Dawn and ISD into one company, the Company converted each existing Sustain Non-
negotiable Incentive Certificate along with its supplemental Addendum to & new “Joumal Technologies Non-negoliable lncentive Certificate”
coupled with a similar supplemental Addendum which defines how the value of the Journal Technologies Certificate will be paid upon a
triggeting event such as a sale of Journal Technologies or an initial public offering. Employees and consultants of Journal Technologies are
eligible to participate in these “Journal Technologies Centificates”. Payouts under the Journal Technolopgics Certificates are calculated based on
the pretax ingome of Joumal Technologies before supplemental compsasation expenses, workers’ - compensation expenses, infangible
amortizations and goodwill Impairment; Also effeotive fiscal 2015, the calculation of payouts under-the Daily Joumal Non-Consolidated
Certificates is;based on the: pretax. earnings of the traditional publishing business before supplemental compensation expenses, workers'
compensation expenses, financing costs of the non-traditional business activities and any write-downs of unrealized losses on investmen(s, The
caloulation of payouts under the Daily Journal Consolidated Certificate remains unchanged, For any certificate held by an employse who has
already met retirement etigibility at age 65, all futurs esmmitments are-expensed immediately. For any certificate held by an employse-who.is.
expected to become retirement efigible during the 10 year period of the certificate, the Company tecognizes the fature commitments at each fiscal
year-end over the period ffom the grant date through retirement eligibility.

Certificate interests entitled participanis to receive 4.13%, 3.85% and 3.66% (amounting to $198,915, $265,490 and $351,120, respectively)
of Daily. Jowmal nan-conselidatad.income. before taxss, workers! compensetion, supplemental compensation and certain other items, 7.07%
(amounting to $10,600 for fiscal 2013} for Journal Technologies and 8.2%, 8.2% and §.2% (amounting to 30, $0 and $241,240, respectively) for
Daily Journal consolidated in fiscal 2615, 2014 and 2013, The Company accrued 547,000 and $780,000 as of September 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, for the Plan’s fitture-commitment for those whe will still have Certificates at the age of 65, This future commitment included a
decrease in fiseal 2015 of $733,000 or $.53 per cutstanding share on & pretax basis and a decrease in fiscal 2014 of $840,000 or $.61 per
outstanding share on a pretax basis due to reduced estimated fiture pretax income. The estimated Incentive Plan's future commitment is
caleulated using Level 3 inputs, as defined in the fair value hisrarchy, based on an average of the past year and the cument year pretax carmings
before certain items, discoutited to the present value at 6% since each granted Unit will expire over its remaining life term ofup to 10 years.
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Income taxes: The Company aceounts for income taxes using an asset and liability approach which requires the recognition of deferred tax
Tiabilities and assets for the expected future consequences of femporary differences between the camying amounts for financial reporting purposes
and the tax basis of the assets and liabilitiss, The Company accounts for uncertainty in incoms taxes under ASC 740-J0 which prosoribes a
recognition threshald and measurement methodology fo Tecognize ind measure an income tax position taken, or'expeeted to be taken, in a tax
return. The evaluation of a tax position is based on & twa-step approach. The fitst step requires an entity fo evaluate whether the tax position
would “more likely than nol” be sustained upon examination by the appropriate faxing authority. The second step requires the tax position be
measured at the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement, Tn addition, previously
recognized benefits from tax positions that no longer meet the new criteria would be derecognized. The Company records tabilities relafed to
uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740, Tax Provisions, At September 30, 2015, the Company accrued an approximately $2,891,000
tax liability for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits relative to an acquisition in fiscal 2013, At September 30, 2014, there wetre unrecegnized

tax benefits of $3,244,000, -

Net income per common shave: The net income per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstending during
each year, The shares used.in the caloulation were 1,380,746 for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013. The Company does not have any common stock
equivalents, and therefore basic and diluted net income per share is the same,

Use of Estimates: The presentation of the Company’s finencial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dale of the financial statements and the repotted amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The lotig-term Incentive Plan accwual is caloulated using Level 3 inputs, as defined in the fair value hierarchy, based on an average of the
past year’s and the current year's pretax eamings, discounted to the present value at 6% since each granted Unit will expire over its remaining life
term of up to 10 years, Additionally, the purchase price allocations for New Dawn and ISD were based on estimates of Tair value at the respective
acquisition dafes, using Level 3. meagurement inputs under the fair value measurement hierarchy, Actual results could differ from these estimatos,

Accounting Standards Adepted in 2013: In Febmary 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASU"Y N, 2013:02, Reporing of Anroumts-Reelussified out of Acoumulated Other Comprehensive. Inconie, requiring entifies ta
disclose additional information with respect to changes in accummiated other comprehensive income (AOCI) balances by component and
significant itemns reclassified out of AOCL This ASU was effective beginning October 1, 2013 for the Company, 8nd the adoption has no impact
on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or finencial positions because it only represents a change to the presentation and disclosure

reqnirements, -
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New Accounting Pronouncements. In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No, 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statenents (Topie 205) and
Property, Plant and Equipment (Topic 360}, Reporting Discontinived Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Enifty. This
update changes the requirements for reporting discontinued operations. A disposal of a component of an entity or a group of components ofan
entity is requiréd'to bereparted in the discontinued opertions ifthe disposal represents a strategic ghift that has {or will have) s major effect on an
entity’s operations and finanoial results. Farther, this update expands the disclosures about an entity’s significant confinuing involvement with a
discontinued operation, The standard is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning on or afler December 15, 2014, including interim
periods within that annual period, which is our fiscal year 2016, An entity should not apply the amendments in this update to & component ofan
entity, or & business or nonprofit activity, that is classified as held for sale before the effective date even if the component of an entity, or business
ot nonprefit activity, is disposed of after the effective date. Early adoption is permitted, but only for dispasals (or classifications as held for sale)
that have not been reported in financizl statements previously issued or available for issuance. We have not yet evaluated what impact, if any, the
adoption of this gnidanee may have on-our financial condition, results of operations or disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 201409, Revenue from Coniracts with Customers (Topic 606), This update clarifies the principles
for revenue recognition in transactions involving contracts with customers, The new revenue recognition guidance provides a five-step analysis
to determine when and how revenue is recognized, The new guidance will require revenue recognition to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services fo a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration a company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or sarvices,

In August 2015, thé FASE issued ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Custoners {Topic 606): Deferral of Effective Date. This
update defers the mandatory effective date of ils revenue recognition standard by one year, The standard is required to be adopted for annual
periods beginning after December 15,2017, including interim periods within that annual period, which is our fiscal year 2019, Early application
is permitted forannual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within that annual period, which is our fiscal
year 2018, We: have notyet evaluated what impact, if any, the adoption of this guidance may have on cur financial condition, resnlts of

operations or disclosures:”

In September 2015, the FPASB issued ASU No, 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-
Period Adjustwients, This update. elimirates the. requizement. for an acquirer in a business combination to account for measurement-period
adjustments retrospectively: Under the existing business combination standard, an acguirer reporis provisional amounts with respect ta acquired
assets and Liabilities when their measurements are incomplete as of the end of the reporting period, Prior te this update, an acquirer is required to
adjust provisional amourits and the related impact on eamings by restating prior penod financizl statements during the measurement period which
cannot exceed one year from the date of acquisition, The new guidance requires that the cumulative impact of a measurement-period adjusiment,
including the impact on prior periods, be recognized in the reporting period in which the adjustment is identified eliminating the requirement to
restate prior period financial statements. The new standard requires disclosure of the nature and amount of measurement-period’ adjustmentsas
well as information with respeet to the portion of the adjustments recorded in enrrent-period eamings that would have been recorded in provious
reporting periods if the adjustments to provisicnal amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date, The standard is required to be adopted
for aunual periods beginning afler December 15, 2015, including interim periods within that annual period, which is our fiscal year 2017. The
amendment is to be applied prospectively to measutement-period adjustments that oceur after the effective date with earlier adoption parmitied.

“We have nat yet evatuated. what fmpact, if any, the adoption of this guidance may have on our financial condition, results of operations or

disclosures.
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In November 2015, the FASE issued ASU No, 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740} Balance Sheet Classification of Deferved Thxes. This
update requires deferred tax liabitities and assets to be classified as noncurrent in the consolidated balance sheet. The standard is required to be
adopted for annual periods beginning afier December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that annual period, which is our fiscal year 2018,
The amendment fmay be applied gither prospectively te all deferred tax-liabilities and assets or retrospectively to all periods presented, We have
not yet evaluated what impact, ifany, the adoption of this guidance may have on our financial condition, resnlts of operations or disclasures.

No other new acc'd'upltring pronouncement issued or effective has had, or is expected to have, a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements,
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3. INCOME TAXES

The (bencfit from) provision for incoime taxes consists ofthe following:

Current:,
Federal
State .

Deferred:
Fedeml
State :

2013

The difference between the statutory federal income tax rate and the Company’s effective rate is summarized below:

Statutory federal income-tex rate
State frattchise taxes (netof foderal tax benefif)
State enterprise zone, benefits .
Business meals/gifts
Domestic production‘astivity deduction
Dividends received deduction
Penalties for uncertain and unrecogmzed tax benefits
Prioryear true-up
Foreign tax credits.,
Effect of state rate change on begmnmg balance ofdcfen‘ed tax liabilities
Others ° -
Effective tax rate

At September 30, 2015, the Compeny's deferred income tsx assets and Habilities were comprised of the fallowing:

Deferred tax assets attribwtable to:

Acerged liabilities, Including supplemental compensation and vacation
pay accrual '

Impairment josses on investmeonts

Bad debt reserves not yet deductible

Depreviation and amortization

Deferred revenues

Credits and other
Total defomred tax assets

Defeired tax liabilities athibutable fo:
Unrealized gains on investmenis
Goodwill

Total deferred tax Liabilities
Net deferred income taxes

50

2015 2014

$ 458,000 % 1,065,000 § 1,011,000
(271,000) 484,000 (228,000)
137,000 1,549,000 783,000
(1,053,000 (1,790,000) (30,600)
(254,000) (249,000) 37,000
(1,307,000 (2,039,000) 7,000
$ (1,120000) $ (450,000) § 790,000

2015 2014 2013
34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
(233) (38.3) 5.0
1349 — -
(18.8) 36.1 1.0
©2.2) (135.7) 2.0)
225.7 (424.6) (10.2)
1155
(7.30) 84,7
284 (17.9) 0.3)
(5.0 - (24)
(5.5) (13) (7.8)
360.9% 4T 5% 17.3%

2015 2014 2013
$ 605,000 § 1,063,000 $ 1,083,000
1,369,000 1,779,000 1,778,00¢
82,000 78,000 78,000
3,251,000 1,822,000 356,000
1,378,000 1,116,000 -
869,000 12,000 41,000
7,554,000 5,870,000 3,336,000
(43,278,000 (48,896,000) (34,610,000
(896,000} (495,000) —
(44,174,000 (49,391 ,000) (34,610,000)

}

b (36,620,000 §

(43,521,000

(31,274,000)
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The Company recorded an income tax benefit of §1,120,000 on pretax loss of $310,000 in fiscal 2015, The effective tax rate was lower than
the statutory rate primarily- due to the dividends received deduction, the domestic production activity deduction and a discrete benefit of
approximately $400,000 relafed to the California Entesprise Zone hiring credits which resulied ffom the Company’s filing amended Califomnia tax
retumns for fiscal 2010 through fiscal 2013, A benefit of this fex credit was fecognized in ‘the figcal 2014 ‘amended tax rétum. On pretak income of
$141,000 for fiseal 2014, the Company recorded a tax Senefit of $480,000. The Company’s effective tax rate was 361% and -348% for fiscal 2015
and 2014, respectively.

At September 30, 2015, the Company had an sccrued liability of approximately $2,951,000 for uncertain and uniecognizad tax benefits
relating to &n acquisition in fiscal 2013, after a reduction of $253,000 resulting from the recognition of defermred revenues and from the
amottization of goodwill for tax purposes. The Company does not anticipate a significant increase or decrease in this 1iability in the next twelve
months. If recognized, it is expected that thess unrecognized tax benefits would not have a significant fmpact on the Company’s effective tax
mate. At September 30, 2014, the Company evaluated & tax position taken on its prior year tax return and determined that the pesition did not
meet the more likely than not criteria because that position taken was in contrary to the one accounted for in purchase accounting, The Company
thus accrued 2 liability of approximately $3,244,000 for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2014, There was no such an

accrual in fiscal 2013,

During fiscal 2035, 2014 and 2013, interest expense of approximately $96,000, $537,000 and $0, respectively, was recorded as “interest and
penalty expense accrued for uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income {{oss), The
Company files federal income tax retums in the United States and with verious state jurisdictions and is no longer subject to examinafions for
fiscal years before fiscal 2012 with regard to federal income taxes and fiscal 2011 for state income taxss.

A reconciliation of the ‘beginning and ending balance for liabilities associated with these uncertain and unrecognized tax benefits is as
fallows: ' e

Uncertain Tax Liabitity
2015 2014 2013

Beginning balance 3 3,244,000 3 — § e

Added Tiabilisy for the prior year — 2,393,000 -

Added liability for the current year -~ 851,000 -~

Tax-paymentuporsctilement - — —_ —_—

Reduced liability for the current year (253,000) _ -
Ending balance 8 2,991,000 § 3244000 § —

4. DEBTS AND COMMITMENTS

Tn December 2012, the Company bomowed from its investment margin account the purchase price of $14 million for the New Dawn
acquisition, and in September 2013, it borrowed ancther $15.5 million for the ISD acquisition, in each case pledging its marketable securities ag
collateral, The interest rate for these investment margin account borowings fluctuates based on the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points with
iiterest only payable monthiy, The interest rate as of September 30, 2015 was 0.75%, and there has been no fluctuation in the interest rate since
December 2012, These investment margin account borrowings do not maturs,
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The Company awns its facilities in Los Angeles and leases space for its other offices under operating leases which expire at various dates
through fiscal 2020, During fiscal 2014, the Company renewed its offics leaso for ifs San Francisco otfice for five years to end on Ooctober 31,
2019 with currenily a monthly rent of approximately $22,600 for about 6,200 square feet, The Logan, Utah office operating lease entered into in.
Deceniber 2012 I connéction with the New Dawn acquisition réquired a moiithly rent of $42,000 for about 30,200 square feet and expired in
December 2015, (The Company purchased this Logan building in Nevember 2013 prior to the expiration of the lease.) Part of this office space is
sub-leased to third parties under short-tenn leases for approximately $5,000 per month. Joumal Technologies leases about 7,100 squere feet of
office space, expiring in March 2017, in Corona, California, for 2 monthly rent of gbout $12,000, The Company is responsible for a portien of
maintenance, insurance end property tax expenses relating to these leassd properties and certain other Jeased properties, Rental expenses for fiscal
years 2015, 2014 and 2013 were $1,171,000, $1,182,000 and $884,000, respectively.

The following table represents the Company's future obligations:

Payments due by Fiscal Year

- 2021
' o 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 and after Total
Obligations under operating leases . § 629,000 § 476,000 § 303,000 § 294,000 § 25000 § -—  $1,727,000
Longterm accrued liabilities™ . -—- 9,000 6,000 — ' — 32,000 47,000

~§ 620000 § 485000 § 309000 § 294000 $ 25000 § 32,000 $1,774,000

# The [ong-term accrued liabilities are discounted to the present value using a discount rate 6T 6%,

5. CONTINGENCIES, -~

From time to time, théfCompany is subject to litigation arfsing in the normal course of its business. While it is not possible to precict the
results of such litigation, management does not believe the ultimate outcome of these matters will have a material effect on the Company's
financial position or resuits of operations or cash flows,
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4, REPOR’I‘ABLE SEGMENTS :

Operatmg segmenrs are deﬁncd &g components of an cnterpnsc which has diserete financial mformatlon that is evaluated regularly by the
Company's Chief Executive, Ofﬁcer 16 decide how to allocate rescurces and to access performance. =«

In accordance with ASC 280- IO Segment Reporting, the Company has two segments of business, The Company s reportable segments are: )
the Traditional Business and (if) Journal Technologies. Journa! Technologies is an aggregation of three technology operating segments -~ Sustain,
New Dawn and ISD, All inter-segment transactions were eliminated, The Company reclassified certain prior years' figures to allocate the amounts
related to the Company’s Corporate function and the elated tax effects to Corporate from its other segments to conform te the presentation
requirements of ASC 280 Summanzed financial mfermatlon conceming the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the following table:

Reportable Segments
Corporate
Traditional Journal income
Business Technologies  and expenses Total
Figcal 2015

Revenues S

Advertising, net . $ 10,502,000 § - § — § 10,502,000

Circulation . o 5,915,000 — m 5,915,000

Advertising service fecs and other 2,703,000 - e 2,703,000

Licensing and mamte.nance:[ees - 13,984,000 — 13,984,000

Consultingfees ¥ 3 300 - -— 4,704,000 — 4,704,000

Other public servicé fees ~ — 6,170,000 - 6,170,000
Operating expenses 18,038,000 29,452,000 —_ 47,450,000
Income (loss) from operations 1,082,000 {4,594,000) - (3,512,000)

Dividends and interest income — - 3,829,000 3,329,000

Other incoms and capital gains — e 65,000 69,000

Interest expense on margin loans — - {224,600) (224,000)

Interest expense accrued for uncertain and wnrecognized tax benefits — (96,000) —n (96,000)

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments - - (376,000) (376,000)
Prota-ieemer (lossy ' 1,082,000 (4,620,000}, 3,238.000.. (310,000},
Income tax benefit o ‘ (70,000) 1,580,000 {390,000) 1,120,000
Net income (loss) : ' 1,012,000 (3,110,000) 2,908,000 810,000
Total assets ) . 15,047,000 47,108,000 166,041,000 228,196,000
Capital expenditures ) 425,000 140,000 - 565,000
Amortization of intangible assets 12,000 4,895,000 —_ 4,507,000

Reportable Segments
Corporate
Traditional Journal income
Business Technologies  and expenses Total
Fiscal 2014

Revenyes .

Advertising, net : $ 11435000 3% ~ § — § 11,435,000

Circulation. R ' 6,038,000 -— _— 6,038,000

Advertising service fees and other ’ 2,800,000 —m -— 2,800,000

Licensing and maintenance fees - 12,987,000 - 12,087,000

Consulting fees — 4,002,000 - 4,002,000

Other public service fees — 6,161,000 — 6,161,000
Operating expenses 17,154,000 28,459,000 - 45,613,000
Income {foss) from operations 3,119,000 (5,30%,000) —_ {2,190,000)

Dividends and interest income ) - — 3,001,000 3,001,000

Other income and capital gains - - 97,000 97,000

Inferest expenses ’ - - (230,000) {230,000)

Interest expense accrued foruncertain and unrecognized tax benefits — {537,000) -— {537,000)
Pretax income (1oss} 3,119,000 (5,846,000) 2,862,000 141,000
Income tax benefit (1,460,000} 2,350,000 (400,000) 450,000
Net income {loss) ' 1,659,000 (3,496,000) 2,468,000 631,000
Total assets ' 18,228,000 51,973,000 173,675,000 243,877,000
Capital expenditures 110,000 325,000 — 435,000
Amortization of intangible assets — 4,866,000 o 4,865,000
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Fiscal 2013*
Revenues

Advertising, net
Circulation SR e
Advertising service fees and other
Licensing and maintenance fees
Consulting fees ‘ '
Other public service fees .
Operating expenses

Tncome (loss) fiom operations
Dividends-and interest income..
Other income and capital gaing

Interest expenses . - :

Pretax income (loss)
Income tax expense
Net income (loss)
Total assets -
Capital expenditures

Amortization ofintangibleassets .-

Other-than-temporary impairment losses on investments

dico20180927_10k htm

Reportable Segments

Corporate

Traditional Joumal income
"“Businéss Technologies™ * and expenses  Total: -
$ 14472000 % — & — § 14,472,000
6,346,000 — — 6,346,000
3,012,000 — - 3,012,000
- 9,942,000 — 9,942,600
- 3,406,000 —  3406,000
-— 498,000 e 498,000
15,856,000 18,031,000 — 33,887,000
7,974,000 (4,185,000} -— 3,789,000
— -— 2,541,000 2,541,000
- — 55,000 54,000
— — {(97,000) (97,000)
- -— (1,719,000 {1,719,000)
7,974,000 (4,185,000) 780,000 4,569,000
{3,301,000) 2,263,000 248,000 (790,000)
4,673,000 (1,822,000} 1,028,000 3,779,000
18,458,000 47,611,600 136,994,000 203,063,000
26,000 184,000 - 280,000
- 1,865,000 - 1,865,000

* Inclndes (i).New Dawn'’s financial results fiom December 5, 2017 tlrough September 30, 2013 with revenues of §10,403,000 and-expensesof

$10,625,000 (including intangible amortization expenses of'$1,587,000), and {ii) ISD% September 2013 financial results with revenues of
$784,000 and expenses 0f $654,000 (including intangible amortization expenses of $278,000). .

7. RESULTSOF QPERATIONS BY. QUARTER.(UNAUDLIED).

* Includes other-than-témporary impairment losses on investments of $376,000

54

Quarter ended
December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30
{in thousands except per share amounts)
2015
Revenucs § 11,323 § 11,392 % 10,503 § 10,760
Costs and expenses 11,084 12,358 11,636 11,812
Loss fiom operations (361) {966) (1,133) (1,052}
QOther incotne, net 769 795 1,106 A32%
Income (loss) before faxes: 408 171 27 (520)
Benefits from income taxes 25 675 &0 360
Net income (loss) _ 433 504 33 (160)
Rasic and diluted net income (loss) per share 31 37 02 {1
2014
Revenues § 9951 § 10,828 $ 11,147 § 11,497
Costs and expenses 11,220 11,346 11410 11,637
Loss from operations (1,269) (518) (263} (140)
Other income, net 619 501 276 845
Income (loss) before taxes ! (650) 73 13 705
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 10 (20} 25 475
Net income (loss) {640) 53 38 1,180
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per sharo (46) 04 03 .85
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8, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In November 2015, the Company purchased 2 30,700 square foot office building constructed in 1998 on abont 3,6 acres in Logan, Utah that
had boen previotsty leased for Jourhal Techuclogies. The Compary paid $1.25 miillion and financed the balance with a real estate bank loan of
$2.26 million which bears a fixed interest rate 0f4.66% and is repayable in equal monthly installments of about $17,600 through 2030, This [oan
is secured by the Logan facility and can be paid off at any time without prepayment penalty,

Other than the real esl_éite bank Ioan disclosed above, the Company has completed an evaluation of all subsequent events through the
issuance date of these finanéial statements and concluded that no additional subsequent events occurred that required recognition in the financial

statements or disclosures in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Item 9, Changes in and Disagreemeénts with Accountauts on Accounting and Finaneial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item %A, Controls and P.‘rqclerdures

Evaluation uf!)isclnsuré Controls ang Procedures

An evaludtion was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including Gerald L. Salzman,
its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of September 30, 2015, Based on that gvaluation, management concluded that because of certain material weaknesses in its internal
control over financial reporting, as further described below, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were nof effective as of September

30,2015,
Management’s Report or_i_In_ternal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s manageiment is fesponsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over inancial reporting, as such tem
is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) undsr the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal contral over financial reporting has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Compeny’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of
the Company’s-consolidated financial statements, All intermnzl controls, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations, and sometimes
they can have bnc or more material weaknesses, A material weakiess is & deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
financial reporting, such:that thore is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim consclidated
financial statemients will.not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Tach year, management is required by SEC rules to evaluate the effectiveness of the Compary’s intemal control over financial reporting.
That evaluation is conducted under the supervision and with the participation of Mr-Salzman; amd is tased-on the framework in-farernal Controf-
Integrated Framework (1992 framework) issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Orgemizations of the Treadway Commission (*CGSC”), (COSO
has recently issued an updated framework, and the Company expects to use that new framework in its cvaluations begining next year) If we
identify any material weaknesses, the rutes do not allow us to conclude that our intemal control over financial reporting is effective,

As z sl comnpany;: wehnve:cight cxperienced.employess.inthe. ancounting. depastment. and theee.in.the. LL. depattment.. Accoudingly, we.
are not able to segregate duties to the extent we could if we had more people, and we have not sufficiently designed and documented controls that
support an effective assessitient of our intemal controls relating to the prevention of fraud and possible management overtide of controls, Our
controller and the assistant to the controller post and review certain joumal entries and also generate the system based financial reports used in
key management review controls. Additionaily, the controller and the assistant fo the controtler and some department heads have adminisiTative

access to their depariments’ operating systems,

Although the Company has remediated soms of the issues associated with administrative access to specific systems, these steps, however,
have not fully remediated the control issue. Hiring additiona! perscnne! to work in the accounting and IT departments would certainly help
address some of these 1ssues, but we do not believe it would be a wise use of sharcholders’ money,

Also, we do not have sufficient in-house technical accounting expertise to review the quarterly and annual tax analysis and provision, assess
the adequacy of disclosures in our quarterly and annual consclidated fingncial statements and assess and apply accounting standards fhat perfain
to complex and/or non-routine transactions. The lack in expertise to apply the accounting standards resulted in a maferfal andit adjustment in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, We continue to use third party expenis for these matters.
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Recognizing our deficiencies, we use mitigating controls, including a variety of intemal procedures to check and double-check the argas
where one person is responsible for multipls duties, Among other things, the Company’s monitoring activities include monthly review and
comparative analysis of financial, production and public infonmation with prior periods by the Campany’s department superviscrs, the CEO/CFO
and thie Board 0f Direcfors.”. .~ - . . - C

In addition, we believe our most imperiant interz] control is our hiring and retention of honest and capable people, whom we frust to do
their jobs well. Accordingly, we believe our overall internal control environment is sufficient for & company of our size.

In the context of the COSO franmework, however, we believe that the above-mentioned deficiencies constifute material weaknesses as they
relate to the prevention of fraud and possible management overide of controls, and therefors we must conclude that our internal control over
financial reposting was not effective as of September 30, 2015,
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shawholdcrs of Dazly .Iouma] Cozporatmn

We have andited Daily Journal Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2015, based on criteria estabhshed in
Internal Control - ntegrated Framework (1992} issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Daily Joumal Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting and for its
assesstent of the effectiveness of interaal control over financial mpomng, included in the accompanying Management's Repott on Intemal
Contro! over Financial Reporting Cur respensibility is to express an opinion on the company's intemal control over financial reporting based on

our audit.

We conducted-our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan snd pexform the audit to cbtain reasonable asswrance abont whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects; Our audit included oblaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that 3 material weskness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk.
Qur andit also included pe[fomung such other pmcedmes as we considered necessaty in the ciroumstances. We believe that our audif provides a

reasonable basis for our opmlon

A company’s mternal con.troi -over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company’s inteinal confral overfinancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable dotail, acouratefy and fa1rl'y reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions aré recorded a3 necessary to permit preparztion of financial statements in accordance with generally accspted accounting principles,
and that receipis and expandﬂmes of the company ate being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of ynauthorized acquisition, use, or dispesition of the
conipany’s assets that could Rave a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, intemnal control ever financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatoments. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness ta frture periods are subject to the risk that eontrols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstaternent of the company’s anmual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. We have concluded that there are the following material weaknesses which the Company has identified and described in management’s

assessment;

The Company does not have sufficient technicel expertise in assessing and applying accounting standards to corplex and/or nen-routine
tramsactions, teviewing the quarterly and snnual tax analysis and provision, and assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the quarterly and annual
gonsolidated financial statements. The lack in expertise to apply the sccounting standards resulted in & material audit adjustment in the fourth

quarfer of fiscal 2015,
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Additionally, the Company has nol adequately desizned and documented sufficicnt intemal controls to support effective intemal controls relating
fo the risk of fraud and management dveride of internal controls. The controller and the assistant to the controller post and review joumal entries
and also generate the system based financial reports used in key management review contrals, Further, the controller and the assistant fo the
controller and 'some department heads have administrative access to their depariments’ operating systems, :

These matenal weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of andit tests applied in our audit of the fiscal 20135
consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated December 14,2015 on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion; Daily Joumnal Corporation did not maintain, in all material respects, effsctive internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2015, based on the COSC criteria. We do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on management’s statements
referring to any corrective actions taken by the Company after the date of management’s assessment, ’

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consclidated

balance sheets of Daily Joumal Corparation as of September 30, 2015 and 2014 and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(loss), shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then endec and our report dated December 14, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon,

/siBDO USA,LLP

Los Angeles, Califomia” - -
December 14,2015
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Changes in Internal Control over Finazncinl Reporfing

Tn light of the material weaknesses in the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting discussed above for the Gscal year ended
September 30, 2015, mianagement concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures wers not-effoctive as of September 30, 2015,
Although the Company has taken several remodial steps, there were still material weaknesses existing as of September 30, 2015, and there were
no material changes fiifhe Commpany’s intemal control over financial reporting or in other factors reasonably likely to affect its internal control

over financial reporting during the quarter ended Septembsr 30, 2015,

Ttem 98, Otherzilnforﬁ'l;r\ti'on _

None.
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PART IH

Item 10 Dnectm s, Execunve Ofﬁcers and Corpnrate Governance

The mformatmn set forth in the tables the nofes thcreto, and the pa1ag1aphs under the captlons “Biectlon of Dirgotors™, “Corporafe
Govemance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repotting Compliance” in the Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on or about Februaty 10, 2016 {the “Proxy Statemeni"), is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted & Code of Ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees of the Company, including the Chief
Executive Oﬁicel Chief Fmancxal Ofﬁccr and Conlreller. The Company’s Code of Ethics has been filed as Exhibit 14 hereto.

Itemn 11, Executive Compen_sa’hon

The information set fogth under the captions “Executive Compensation” and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement is incomporated
herein by reference.

Ttem 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement is
incomporated herein by reference, .

Ttem 13, Certain Relatii)ns-lrli-pé_ja%lvcl Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The informa-tion sxatﬁ);‘th.j tiln-de.sl' the .caption “Corporate Govemance” in the Proxy Statement is incérporated herein by reference,
Ttem T4, Prineipal Accounting Fees and Services
The information set fbrthI under the- caption “Other Matiers Regarding Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Proxy

Statement is incorporated herein by reference,
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PART IV
Item 15, Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as pazt of this Repert:

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30,2015 and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended Septcmber 30,2015,2014 and 2013
Consolidated Staternents of Sharsholders’ Equity for the ysars ended September 30, 2015,2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Cesh Flows for the years ended September 30,2015,2014 and 2013
Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements

{2)  Exhibits :

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreemcnt dated September 13,2013, by and between Daily Joumal Corporation; Techno]ogy Acquisition Corporation;
ISD Coporation; ISD Investments, LLC; Hans Imhof; Ronald C. Beach; and Mark Nielsen, (#)

22  Acquisition Agreement with respect to New Dawn Technologles, Inc., dated December 4,2012, by and among Daily Joumnal Corporatioz,
Thomas Higgins and Frank Felice. ()

3.1 Articles’of Incorporation of Daily Journal Coiporation, s amended, (=)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Joumal Corporation. (=)

10,1  Form of Non-Negotiable Certificate Representing an Employee Participant Interest in the Daily Journal Cerporation (“DJC™} Plan for
Supplemental Compensation to an Employee as long as that Employee Remains Employed by DIC or one of its Subsidiaries, Based on
Pre-tax Eamnings of DIC and its Subsidiaties on a Consolidated Basis. () (=

14 Daily Journal Corporation Code of Ethics. (=)

21 Daily Journal Corporation’s List of Subsidiaries,

i1 Centification by ChiefExecutive Officer and Chief Financial (fifcer pursuant to Section 302 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32 Certification by Chief Bxecutive Officer and Chief Financial Cflicer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

(£) Filed as an Bxhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 13,

2013,
(#) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s 2012 Annual Repert on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December

14, 2082,
(=) Filed as an Exhibit to the Company s 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 28,

2015,
(1} Management Compensatory Plan,

62

hitpsfwww.sec.goviArchives/edgar/data/783412/000143774915022202/djco20150827_10k.him 64/66




g/21/2016

djco20150827_10k.hm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the 1 equements of Sectlon 13 or 15(d} of the Securifies Exchange Aet of 1934 the regxsfrant has dualy caused this report te be
signed on'its ‘BehaiTby the undersxgned theretinte duly aathotized.”

Date: DecemberM,ZOIS K

DATLY JOURNAL CORPORATION

By . Jo/ Gerald L. Salzman

Gerald L. Salzman

President

Parsuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Signature =

‘fs/ Charles T. Munger.

. Charles T, Munger,.

s/ Gerald T, SalZman

Gerald L. Sa{zz_nau

Js/ 1.P. Guenn

J. P. Guerin

Peter Kaufinan

Gary Wilcox

Tiile

Chairman of the Bosrd

President, Chief Executive Officer,
ChiefFinancial Officar,

Treasurer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer,
Principal Financial Qfficer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Direstor

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX
2.1 Asgset Purchase Agreement, dated September 13, 2013, by and between Daily Jounal Corporation; Technology Acqmsltmn
“Corporation; 18D Torporation; ISD ivestimieits, LLC; Hans Imhof Ronald C;Beach; and Mark Nielsen. ()
22 Acguisition’ Agreement with respect to New Dawn Technologies, Inc., dated December 4, 2012, by and among Daily Joumal
Cormporation, Thomas Higgins and Frank Felice, (&}

3.1 Articles of Tncorporation of Daily Journal Corporation, as amended. (=)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Joumal Corporation. (=)

10.1 Fomm of Non-Negotiable Certificaie Representing an Employee Participant Interest in the Daily Journal Coiporation (“"DIC™) Plan

for Supplemental Compensation o an Employee as long as that Employee Romains Employed by DJC or one of its Subsidiaries,
Based on Pre-tax Eamings of DJC and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated Basis. (1) (=)

14 Daily Tournal Cémporation Code of Ethics. (=)

21 Daily Jownal Corporation’s List of Subsidiaries,

3l Cettification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0£2002,
32 Certification by ChiefExecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02002,

101.93* XBRL Instance

101,8CH*  XBRI, Taxonomy Extenswn Schema
101.,CAL*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF*  XBRE Taxononty Extension Definition
101.LAB*  XBRL Taxonomy Bxtension Labels
101.PRE* XBRI;’ ‘”-I‘axan omy Extérisien Presentation

o

(€3] 1led as an’ Exh1b1t I:o the Company s Current Report on Fonn 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Septamber
13,2013,

() Filed as an Exhibit to fhe Companys 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commxssxon on
December 14,2012,

(= Filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 28, 2015.

8] dMunagement Compensatory Plan.

* XBRL information is furnished and not filed as 4 part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 13 or 12 of the

Securities Aot of 1993, as erended; ts-deemed ot fifed fir purposes-of sevtforr 1# of the-Sécurities Brelamge Actof 1934, as amended;
and otherwiss is not subject to liability under these sections.
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REQUISITICHN

RppriGoo0DNSs 18/SER/2016

VENDOR : . - ' REQUISITIONER:
JOURNAL ‘I‘ECH].\TDLOGiES, INC. i b DISTRICT ATTORNEY
843 BOUTH 100 WEST . 262 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
LOGAY UT 84321 MINEQLA NY 1150%
_ VICKI CORDOVA/GCRDON TRABOLD
TEL: (877)587-8927 TEL: (516)571-3376
FAX:(801)760-3407 . FAX: ). -

AN JORG ES Eer

ITEM DESCRIPTION
ool T 920-45 I
COMPUTER SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE/SUFPORT
ANNUAT, SUPPORT & MATNTENANCE RENEWAL OF THE DA'S JUSTWARE CASE
MANAGEMENT & DOCUMENT MGMT SYSTEM 12/1/16 - 11/30/17
TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

; QTY U/M R UNIT COST TOTAL
: " 1.00 EA 148,987,0000 148,987.00

JUSTWARE APT SUPPORT . . L @ $21,581 = 521,551
JUSTICE WEB ANNUAL SUPPORT & UFGZEADES 10 @ 3266.70 = 82,667
JUBSTWARE SUPPORT ; _' s - 3'75_ @ %312.733= $117,275
AUNURE ONTETE" i&srsmr TRATRING T & $7, 45§ = S77458"

ESTIMATED TOTAL: 148,9B87.00

o *3?")ﬁf4



RQDALE6Q00098 19/5EP/2016

VENDOR: ; :
JOURNAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

BA3 SOUTH 100 WEAT

LOGAN UT 84321

TEL:(877)587-8927 -
FAX :(8BD1)760-3407

REQUISITION

REQUISITIONER:
LA DISTRICT ATTORNEY
252 OLD COUNTRY ROAD

MINEOLA

NY 11501

VICKI CORDOVA/GORDON TRABOLD

TEL: (516)571-3376

FAX: (

)



Yournal

TECHNOLOGIES

ATTN: Gordon Trabold
Nassau County District Attorney

.9/8/2016
“Mr. Trabold, -

-Journal Technologies, Inc. is the only business entity singularly qualified to provide the
“following capabilities that are a requirement for our case management software and
_office operations:

1. Only Journal Technologies’ customer services team can provide technical support to
-JustWare users. No other vendor can provide JustWare updates, and/or eritical bug
- fixes. h ' - : o

2. Journal Technologies, Inc. provides new versions, enhancements and regular version
releases as part of the support fees that are paid. Only Jowrnal Technologies, Inc. can
provide new versions of the JustWare case management software application.

3. Justware is a proprietary software solution that Journal Technologies, Inc. does not
permitthirdparty companieste market mplerment rost, suppert; ormedify:

Ben Stocks / Account Management Manager / PMP
bstocks@jonrnaltech.com / {877) 587-8927 x4215

Journal Technelogies
843 8 100 West, Logan, UT 84321
hitp: //www.journaltechnologies.com




Quote

Page: 1
JOURNALTECHNOLOGIES, INC.
843 South 100 West
Logan, UT 84321 USA . Number: Quote
accouAnting@j@.ux_*.naltech.com Date: 9/15/2014
Phore: 435-713-2100
Salesperson:
Customer: 3128

NASSAU COUNTY DISTBICT ATTORNEY NASSAU COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Department of Information Technology Department of Information Technology
262 Old Country Rd ' 262 O1d Country Rd

Mineola. NY 11501 USA Mineola, NY 11501 USA

3128-S Net 30 days

JustWare: Support: ) 375060 A3 | LWEZT5.00
Annua} Onsite Assistance, Training ' 1.000 7,454.000 . 745400
JusticeWeb Annual Support and Upgrades ’ £0.000 265.700 : 2,667.00
JustWare API Support 1.000 21,591.000 21,591.00
__________________________________________________________ LAST ITEM T T T

Subtotal 148,987.00

Annual Sup Renewal 12/01/2016-11/30/2017 Freight 0.00

Seles Tax 0.00

Trade Discount 0.00

0.00

Contact: D Neiland 148,987.00




